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Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of AB INTER RAO Lietuva

Report on Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of AB INTER RAQ Lietuva, a public limited liability company
registered in the Republic of Lithuania (hereinafter the Company), and the consolidated financial statements of AB
INTER RAO Lietuva and its subsidiaries (hereinafter the Group), which comprise the statements of financial position as of
31 December 2015, the statements of comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes (comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information).

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company's management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the Eurcpean Unicn, and for such internal
control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of the financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with international Standards on Auditing as set forth by the international Federation of Accountants. Those
standards require that we compiy with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reascnable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures fo obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procecures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an cpinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
poiicies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Cpinion

in our opinion, the accompanying financiaf statemnents present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the
Company and the Group as at 31 December 2015 and their financial performance and cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Internationat Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Reguirements

Furthermore, we have read the accompanying consclidated Annual Report for the year ended 31 December 2015 and
have not noted any material inconsistencies between the financial information inciuded in it and the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2015,

UAB ERNST & YOUNG BALTIC
Audit company’s licence Ng./001335

The audit was completed on 10 February 2016.

A member firm of Ernst & Young Globa! Limited




AB INTER RAOQ LIETUVA, company code 126119913, A Tumeéno str. 4, Vilnius, Lithuania

CONSOLIDATED AND COMPANY'S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 December 2015

{all amounts are in EUR thousand uniess otherwise stated)

Statements of financial position

ASSETS

Non-current assets
Intangible assets
Goodwill
Operating license
Other intangible assets
Total intangible assets
Property, plant and equipment
Land
Buildings and structures
Office premises
Machinery and equipment
Other property, plant and equipment
Total property, plant and equipment
Investment property

Interest in a joint venture and
subsidiaries
Other non-current financial assets

Derivative financial instruments
Deferred income tax asset
Total non-current assets

Current assets
Inventories and prepayments
Accounts receivable

Trade receivables

Other receivables from subsidiaries
and joint venture
Accrued income and other
receivables

Total accounts receivable

Prepaid income tax

Other current assets

Derivative financial instruments
Cash and cash equivalents
Total current assets

Total assets

Notes

8, 26
26

14
10

Group Company
As at 31 As at 31 As at 31 As at 31
December December December December
2015 2014 2015 2014

1,716 1,716 - -
6,045 7,268 - -
56 83 52 82
7,817 9,057 52 82
696 737 - -
3,055 3,221 - -
849 924 849 925
17,132 18,049 - -
56 78 51 70
21,788 23,009 900 095
148 158 146 158
129 195 10,927 11,382
1,058 1,227 141 211
- 25 232 26
- - 99 -
30,938 33,671 12,397 12,854
197 141 140 119
15,252 17,239 13,181 15,306
. - 2,844 4,173
1,164 2,247 2 -
16,416 19,486 16,027 19,479
- 189 - -
379 250 250 188
- 56 850 b6
19,755 11,228 15,707 8,352
36,747 31,350 32,774 28,194
67,685 65,021 45171 41,048

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

{cont’d on the next page}




AB INTER RAO LIETUVA, company code 126119913, A.Tuméno str. 4, Vilnius, Lithuania
CONSOLIDATED AND COMPANY'S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 December 2015
(all amounis are in EUR thousand unless otherwise stated)

Statements of financial position (cont’d)

Group Company
As at 31 As at 31 As at 31 As at 31
December December December December
Notes 2015 2014 2015 2014

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Share capital 1 5,800 5,792 5,800 5,792
Legal reserves i1 831 787 579 579
Cash flow hedge reserve 11 (981) (428) 73 48
GCurrency transiation reserve 22 (43) (62) - -
Retained earnings 19,381 11,814 16,140 11,228
Total equity 24,998 17,913 22,592 17,647
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Non-current borrowings 12 13,750 17,050 - -
Financial lease obligations 13 727 708 - -
Derivative financial instruments 14 533 476 205 -
Deferred income tax liability 21 918 833 - -
Total non-current liabilities 15,928 19,067 - 205 -
Current liabilities
Current portion of non-current

borrowings i2 3,300 3,300 - “
Other financial debts i 6,297 3,051 6,297 3,051
Current portion of financial lease

obligations 13 33 68 - -
Derivative financial instruments 14 865 323 564 34
Trade payables 15, 26 11,108 16,076 11,054 15,910
Income tax payable 2,265 1,115 2,146 1,115
Advances received 98 188 a8 181
Other current liabilities 16 2793 3,920 2915 3,110
Total current liahilities 26,759 28,041 22374 23,401
Total equity and liabilities 67,685 65,021 45,171 41,048
The accompanying notes are an integral parnt of these financial statements, ’1

General Manager Giedrius Bal&ilinas U]UJL 10 February 2016

Economic Director Paulius Vazniokas

Ix
\

10 February 2016




AB INTER RAO LIETUVA, company code 126118913, A.Tuméno str. 4,‘ViEnius, Lithuania
CONSOLIDATED AND COMPANY’S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 December 2015
(all amounts are in EUR thousand unless otherwise stated)

Statements of comprehensive income

Group Company
Notes 2015 2014 2015 2014
Sales 3,17 186,694 210,362 157,510 188,744
Cost of sales 18 {157,092} {188,593) {133,501) (171,189)
Gross profit 29,602 21,769 24,009 17,555
General and administrative expenses 19 (6,804) (6,736) (4,712) {4,443)
Profit from operations 22,798 15,033 19,297 13,112
Income from other activities 26 206 19 182
Finance incomeg 20 35 56 75 165
Finance expenses 20 (900) (987) {569) (354)
Share of resutt of joint venture 6 2 52 - -
Profit (loss) before tax 21,961 14,360 18,815 13,105
Income tax 21 (3,142) (2,017) (2.695) (1,905)
Net profit 18,819 12,343 16,120 11,200
Other comprehensive income to be
reclassified to profit or loss in
subsequent periods
Net result on cash flow hedges (638) (281) 37 48
Income tax effect 85 54 (12} -
Effect of currency exchange 19 {80) - -
Total other comprehensive income
to be reclassified to profit or loss
in subsequent periods, net of tax {534) {307 25 48
Total comprehensive income for the
year, net of tax 18,285 12,036 16,145 11,248
Basic and diluted eamings per share
{EUR) 22 0.94 0.62
The accompanying notes are an integral pant of these financial statements,
General Manager Giedrius Balgitnas 10 February 2018
Economic Director Paulius Vaznickas 10 February 2016




AB INTER RAO LIETUVA, company code 126119913, A.Tuméno str. 4, Vilnius, Lithuania
CONSOLIDATED AND COMPANY’S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 December 2015
(all amounts are in EUR thousand unless otherwise stated)

Statements of changes in equity

Group
Equity attributable to equity holders of the parent
Currency
Share translation Legal Cash flow Retained
Notes  capital reserve  reserve hedge reserve  earnings Total

Balance as at 31 December

2013 5,792 18 579 { 201) 3,454 9,642
Net profit for the year - - - - 12,343 12,343
Other comprehensive 14

income, net of tax - (80} - (227) - { 307)
Total comprehensive

income - ( 80} - {227} 12,343 12,036
Transfer to reserves 11 . - 218 - (218) -
Dividends declared 23 - - - - {3,765) {3,765)
Balance as at 31 December

2014 5,792 {62) 797 { 428) 11,814 17,913
Net profit for the year . - - - 18,819 18,819
Other comprehensive 14

income, net of tax - 19 - {553) - (534)
Total comprehensive

income - 19 - {553) 18,819 18,285
Transfer to reserves 11 . . 34 - (34) -
Change of share capital due

to transition to euro 8 - - - (8} -
Dividends declared 23 - . - . {11,200} {11,200)
Balance as at 31 December

2015 5,800 {43) 831 (981) 19,391 24,998

Company
Cash flow
Share Legal hedge Retained
Notes capital reserve reserve earnings Total

Balance as at 31 December 2013 5,792 579 - ”3,'793 10,164
Net profit for the year - - - 11,200 11,200
Other comprehensive income - - 48 - 48
Total comprehensive income - - 48 11,200 11,248
Dividends declared 23 - - - {3,765) (3,765)
Balance as at 31 December 2014 5,792 576 48 11,228 17,647
Net profit for the year - - R 16,120 16,120
Other comprehensive income, net

of tax - - 25 - 25
Total comprehensive income - - 25 16,120 16,145
Change of share capital due to

transition to euro 8 - - (8) -
Dividends declared 23 . - - (11,200) {11,200}
Batance as at 31 December 2015 5,800 579 . 73 16,140 22 592

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

General Manager

Giedrius Baléitinas

N

10 February 2016

Economic Director

Paulius Vazniokas

10 February 2016




AB INTER RAOQ LIETUVA, company code 126119913, A.Tuméno str. 4, Vilnius, Lithuania

CONSOLIDATYED AND COMPANY’S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 December 2015

(all amounts are in EUR thousand unless otherwise stated)

Statements of cash flows

Cash flows from (to) operating
activities
Net profit

Adjustments for non-cash items:
Income tax expenses

Depreciation and amortisation

impairment of investment to joint venture
Allowance for doubtfut accounts
receivable

Loss on write-offs of non-current assets
Share of net result of joint venture
Dividend {income})

Interest {income) expenses

Changes in working capital:

(Increase) decrease in inventories and
prepayments and other receivables from
subsidiaries and joint venture

(Increase) decrease in accounts
receivable and other current assets
(Decrease) increase in trade payables

Income tax (paid}

{Decrease) increase in other current
liabilities

Net cash flows from operating
activities

Cash flows from (to) investing
activities
{(Acquisition} of non-current assets

(Increase) decrease in other non-cutrent
assets

interest received

Dividends received
Net cash flows from (to) investing
activities

Notes

21
4,5

20

Group Company
2015 2014 2015 2014

18,819 12,343 16,120 11,200
3,142 2,017 2,695 1,905
2,487 2,472 148 128
- - 455 290
6 2 6 2
- L} - -
2 (52) - -
- - {70) (134)
871 960 112 62
25,323 17,745 19,466 13,453
(56) {11) 1,308 (1,306)
2,935 {3,575) 1,983 (2,179)
(4,968) 1,949 (4.856) 1,896
(1,823) ( 66} {1,775) -
{9686) 1,504 {934) 1,374
20,445 17,546 15,192 13,238
(14) {82) (11) (82)
169 { 676) 170 {176}
21 24 - -
70 130 o 134
246 (604) 229 {124)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

{cont’d on the next page)




AB INTER RAODO LIETUVA, company code 126119813, A.Tuméno str. 4, Vilnius, Lithuania
CONSOLIDATED AND COMPANY’S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 December 2015

{all amounts are in EUR thousand uniess otherwise stated)

Statements of cash flows (cont'd)

Cash flows from (to) financing
activities

Dividends {paid)

Loans repaid

Interest (paid)

Financial lease (paymenis)

Net cash flows {to) financing activities

Net increase {(decrease) in cash and
cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the
beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end
of the year

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

General Manager

27

Giedrius Balfiinas

Economic Director

Paulius Vazniokas

Group Company
2015 2014 2015 2014

(4,920) { 753) {4,920} {753)
(6,351) {8,378) (3,051) {4,978)
{877) {944) (95) {23
{16) { 42) - -
{12,164) (10,117) (8,068) (5,752)
8,527 6,825 7,355 7,362
11,228 4,403 8,352 980
19,755 11,228 15,707 8,352

[ z_ 10 February 2016

¥
= 10 February 20186




AB INTER RAO LIETUVA, company code 126119913, A.Tuméno str. 4, Vilnius, Lithuania
CONSOLIDATED AND COMPANY'S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 December 2015
(all amounts are in EUR thousand unless otherwise stated)

Notes to the financial statements

General information

AB INTER RAQ Lietuva (hereinafter, “the Company”} is a public limited liability company registered in the Republic of
Lithuania. Its registered office is located at:

A.Tumeéno str. 4, Viinius
Lithuania

The Company was registered on 21 December 2002. On 22 October 2012 the Company changed its legal status
from private limited liability company to public limited liability due fo the listing on the Warsaw stock exchange. Since
18 December 2012 the Company's shares are traded on the Warsaw Stock Exchange on the Main trade list.

The Company’s core line of business is supply of electricity. The Company holds the following licenses and
permissions:
1)  Alicense No. L1-NET-14 of an independent electricity supplier entitling to supply electricity in Lithuania;
2) Unlimited-term permission No. LE-0004 for electricity export from Lithuania;
3) Unlimited-term pemission No. LI-0002 for electricity import to Lithuania;
4y Unlimited-term permission No. LE-0020 for electricity export to Russia and Belarus;
5) Unlimited-term permission No. LI-0030 for electricity import from Russia and Belarus fo Lithuania.

The subsidiary SIA INTER BAQ Latvia is included in slectricity trading registry in the Republic of Latvia. The
subsidiary OU INTER RAO Eesti holds a termiess license No. 7.2-3/12-042 of an independent electricity supplier in
Estonia. The subsidiary Vydmantai wind park, UAB holds a termiess permit to produce electricity No. LG - 0238. In
2014 the Energy Regulatory Authority of the Republic of Poland has granted the Group’s company Sp z ¢.0. IRL
Polska the license for electricity trading which took effect on 9 January 2014.

As at 31 December 2015 and 2014 the shareholders of the Company were as follows:

31 December 2015 31 December 2014
Number of Interest Number of interest
shares heid held shares held held
RAO Nordic Oy, company code 1784937-7,
Tammasaarenkatu 1, Helsinki, Finland 10,200,000 51% 10,200,000 51%
UAB Scaent Baltic, company code 300661378,
Jogailos str. 9, Vilnius, Lithuania 5,800,000 29°, 5,800,000 299,
Other shareholders 4,000,000 20% 4,000,000 20%
Total 20,000,000 100% 20,000,000 100%

The ultimate parent company is PJSC Inter RAO, company code 2320109650, address Bolshaya Pirogovskaya st.
27, building 3, Moscow 119435, Russian Federation.

As at 31 December 2015 and 2014 the Company's share capital was comprised of 20,000,000 ordinary shares with
the par value of EUR 0.29 each. The share capital was fully paid as at 31 December 2015 and 2014, The Company
did not hold its own shares in 2015 and 2014. As at 31 December 2015 and 2014, the subsidiaries and the joint
venture did not hold any shares of the Company.

The management of the Company approved these financial statements on 10 February 2016. The shareholders of

the Company have a statutory right to either approve these financial statements or not approve them and require a
new set of financial statements to be prepared.

i0
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AB INTER RAO LIETUVA, company code 126119913, A.Tuméno str. 4, Vilnius, Lithuania
CONSOLIDATED AND COMPANY’S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 December 2015
(all amounts are in EUR thousand unless otherwise stated)

General information {(cont’d)

As at 31 December 2015 the Group consisted of the Company and the following directly controlled subsidiaries and
joint venture {hereinafter, the Group);

invest
Directly and ~ment R
Tt . Equity As
indirectly held value Profit . .
Company Cog;g:ny effective {cost {loss) De:te::b or Reﬂ%z:’:sﬂso" Activity
attributable less for 2015
s i 2015
interest impair
ment)
Vaikare-Karia
OU INTER RAO Eesti - o 3/8auna 2, Trade of
subsidiary 11879805 100 % 52 191 (483) Taliinn, electricity
Estonia
. RopaZu iela
SIA INTER RAO Latvia o . Trade of
- subsidiary 40103268639 100 % 3 780 {609) 11_ 0, B;ga, electricity
atvia
Emilii Plater
Sp. z 0.0. IRL Polska - Trade of
subsidiary 0000436992 100 % 2,392 {163} 1,996 | 53. Warsaw, electricity
Poiand
<. Verkiy Str. Operations
UAB Alproka —joint 125281684 49.99 % - 3 258 | 25C, Vilnius, | with real
venture h .
Lithuania estate
L A.Tumeno .
Vydmantai wind park, s Generation
UAB - subsidiary 302666616 100 % 8,500 1,593 12,314 a{; L?é':gmus, of electricity

As at 31 December 2014 the Group consisted of the Company and
subsidiaries and joint venture (hereinafter, the Group):

the following directly and indirectly controfied

invest
Directly and -ment ,
M . Equity As
indirectly held value Profit . .
Company Co:;gzny effective {cost {loss) Dez;g:ber Reaggz:reasttson Activity
attributable jess for 2014 2014
interest impair
ment}
Vaikare-Karja
OU INTER RAO Eesti - 3/Sauna 2, Trade of
subsidiary 11879805 100% 82 281 81| Tailinn, electricity
Estonia
. ) RopaZu iela
SIA INTER RAO Latvia o : Trade of
~ subsidiary 40103268639 100 % 3 67 {1,388) 10, Blga, slectricity
Latvia
Emilil Plater
Sp. z 0.0, IBL Polska - Trade of
subsidiary 0000436932 100 % 2,392 {111) 2,131 53. Warsaw, slectriclty
Poland
. Verkiy Str. Operations
UAB Alproka —joint 125281684 49.99 % 455 105 391 25G, Vilnius, | with real
veniure p .
Lithuania estate
Lo A.Tuméno .
Vydmantai wind park, i Generation
UAB - subsidiary 302666616 100 % 8,500 676 10,577 E;;! jér:ilgmus, of alectricity

Changes in 2015

in 2015 the Company estimated the recoverable value of UAB Alproka and recorded the impairment to investment in
joint venture of EUR 455 thousand under financial expenses in the statement of comprehensive income,

Changes in 2014

In 2014 the Company estimated the recoverable value of UAB Alproka and recorded the impairment to investment in
joint venture of EUR 290 thousand under financial expenses in the statement of comprehensive income.

11




AB INTER RAO LIETUVA, company code 126119913, A.Tuméno str. 4, Vilnius, Lithuania
CONSOLIDATED AND COMPANY’S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 December 2015

(all amounts are in EUR thousand unless otherwise stated)

2 Accounting policies

‘The principal accounting policies adopted in preparing the Group’s and the Company’s financial statements for the
year 2015 are as follows:

2.1. Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRS), as adopted by the Europsan Union (hereinafter the EU).

These financial statements are prepared based on a historical cost basis except for derivative financial instruments,
which are measured at fair value.

Adoption of new and/or changed IFRS and International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee
(IFRIC) interpretations

The foilowing new and/or amended IFRSs have been adopted by the Group and the Company as of 1 January 2015:

» Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2011 — 2013 Cycle
¥ IFRIC Interpretation 21: Levies

Annual improvements to IFRSs 2011 — 2013 Cycle is a collection of amendments to the following IFRSs:

+ IFRS 3 Business Combinatfions: This improvement clarifies that IFRS 3 excludes from its scope the
accounting for the formation of a joint arrangement in the financial statements of the joint arrangement itself.

+ IFRS 13 Fair value Measuremeni: This improvement clarifies that the scope of the portfelio exception defined
in paragraph 52 of {FRS 13 includes ali contracts accounted for within the scope of 1AS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement or IFRS 9 Financial instruments, regardless of whether they meet
the definition of financial assets or financial liabilities as defined in 1AS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation.

s |AS 40 Investment property: This improvement clarifies that determining whether a specific fransaction
meets the definition of both a business combination as defined in IFRS 3 Business Combinations and
investment property as defined in IAS 40 Investiment Property requires the separate application of both
standards independently of each other.

The implementation of these standards had no effect on the financial statements of the Group and the Company.

IFRIC Interpretation 21 Levies

This interpretation addresses the accounting for levies imposed by governments. Liability fo pay a levy is recognized
in the financiat statements when the activity that triggers the payment of the levy occurs. The implementation of this
standard had no effect on the financial statements of the Group and the Company.

Standards issued but not yet effective

The Group and the Company has not applied the foliowing IFRS and IFRIC interpretations that have been issued as
of the date of authorization of these financial statements for issue, but which are not yet effective:

Amendments to IAS 1 Presentalion of financial statements: Disclosure Initiative (effective for financial years
beginning on or after 1 January 20186)

The amendments o IAS 1 further encourage companies to apply professional judgment in determining what
information to disclose and how to structure it in their financial statements. The Group and the Company have not yet
evaluated the impact of the implementation of this standard.

Amendments to IAS 16 Property, Plant & Equipment and |AS 38 Infangible assets: Clarification of Acceptable
Methods of Depreciation and Amortization (effective for financial years beginning on or after 1 January 2016)

The amendment provides additional guidance on how the depreciation or amortisation of property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets should be calculated. It is clarified that a revenue-based method is not considered to
be an appropriate manifestation of consumption. The implementation of this amendment will have no impact on the
financial statements of the Group and the Company, as the Group and the Company do not use revenue-based
depreciation and amortisation methods.

12




AB INTER RAO LIETUVA, company code 126119813, A.Tuméno str. 4, Vilnius, Lithuania
CONSOLIDATED AND COMPANY’S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 December 2015
{all amounis are in EUR thousand unless otherwise stated)

2 Accounting policies (cont'd)
2.1. Basis of preparation (cont’d)
Amendments to IAS 19 Employee Benefits (eftective for financial years beginning on or after 1 February 2015)

The amendments address accounting for the employee contributions te a defined benefit plan. Since the Group’s and
the Company’s employees do not make such contributions, the implementation of this amendment will not have any
impact on the financial statements of the Group and the Company.

Amendments to IAS 27 Equity method in separate financial statements (effective for financial years beginning
on or after 1 January 2016)

The amendments reinstate the equity method as an accounting option for investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures
and associates in an entity's separate financial statements. The Company has not yet evaluated the impact of the
implementation of this standard.

Amendment to IFRS 11 Joint arrangements: Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in Joint Operations
{effective for financial years beginning on or after 1 January 2016)

IFRS 11 addresses the accounting for interests in joint ventures and joint operations. The amendment adds new
guidance on how to account for the acquisition of an interest in a joint operation that constitutes a business in
accordance with IFRS and specifies the appropriate accounting treatment for such acquisitions, Management has no
plans of such acquisitions in the nearest future; therefore this amendment will not have any impact on the financial
statements of the Group and the Company.

IFRS 8 Financial Instruments {effective for financial years beginning on or after 01.01.2018, once endorsed by the
Eu)

IFRS 9 replaces IAS 39 and introduces new requirements for classification and measurement, impairment and hedge
accounting. The Group and the Company have not yet evaluated the impact of the implementation of this standard.

Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and |AS 28 - Investment Entities: Applying the consolidation exception
{etfective for financial years beginning on or after 1 January 2016, once endorsed by the EU)

The amendments address issues that have arisen in the context of applying the consolidation exception for
investment entities. Since Company’s is not an investment entity, the implementation of this amendment will not have
any impact on the financial statements of the Group and the Company.

Amendments to IFRS 10 and |IAS 28 — Sale or Confribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate
or Joint Venture (endorsement deferred indefinitely)

The amendments address an acknowledged inconsistency between the requirements in IFRS 10 and those in IAS
28, in dealing with the sale or contribution of assets between an investor and its associate or joint venture, The main
consequence of the amendments is that a full gain or loss is recognised when a transaction involves a business and
partial gain or loss is recognised when a transaction involves assets that do not constitute a business. The Group and
the Company have not yet evaluated the impact of the implemenitation of this standard.

IFRS 14 Reguiatory Deferral Accounts (effective for financial years beginning on or after 1 January 2016, once
endorsed by the EUJ)

IFRS 14 provides first-time adopters of IFRS with relief from derecognizing rate-reguiated assets and liabilities.
However, to enhance comparability with entities that already apply {FRS and do not recognize such amounts, the
standard requires that the effect of rate regutation must be presented separately from other items. An entity that
already presents IFRS financial statements is not eligible to apply the standard. The implementation of this standard
will not have any impact on the Group and the Company.

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers (effective for financial years beginning on or after 1 January
2018, once endorsed by the EU}

IFRS 15 establishes a five-step model that will apply to revenue earned from a contract with a customer, regardless
of the type of revenue transaction or the industry. Extensive disclosures will be required, including disaggregation of
total revenue; information about performance obligations; changes in contract asset and liability account balances
between periods and key judgments and estimates. The Group and the Company have not ye! evaluated the impact
of the implementation of this standard.
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AB INTER RAO LIETUVA, company code 126119913, A.Tuméno str. 4, Vilnius, Lithuania
CONSOLIDATED AND COMPANY’S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 December 2015
(all amounts are in EUR thousand unless otherwise stated)

2 Accounting policies (cont’d}
2.1. Basis of preparation (cont’d)
IFRS 16 Leases {effective for financial years beginning on or after 1 January 2019, once endorsed by the EU}

IFRS 16 replaces [AS 17 and specifies how to recognize, measure, present and disclose leases. The standard
provides a single lessee accounting model, requiring lessees o recognize assets and liabilities for all leases unless
the lease term is 12 months or less or the underlying asset has a low vaiue. Lessor accounting is substantially
unchanged. The Group and the Company have not yet evaluated the impact of the implementation of this standard.

Improvements to IFRSs

In December 2013 IASB issued the Annual improvements to IFRSs 2010 -~ 2012 Cycle (effective for financial years
beginning on or after 1 February 2015):

» |[FRS 2 Share-based Payment,

» |[FRS 3 Business Combinations;

» IFRS 8 Operating Segments;

« IFRS 13 Fair value Measurement;

» |AS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment,

= 1AS 24 Related Pary Disclosures;

»1AS 38 Intangible Assets.

In September 2014 |ASB issued the Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2012 — 2014 Cycle {effective for financial years
beginning on or after 1 January 2016):

IFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operation;

« IFRS8 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures;

s |AS 19 Employee Benefits;

» |AS 34 Interim Financial Reporting.

The adoption of these amendments may result in changes to accounting policies or disclosures but will not have
any impact on the financial position or performance of the Group and the Company.

The Group and the Company plan to adopt the above mentioned standards and interpretations on their effectiveness
date provided they are endorsed by the EU.

2.2, Measurement and presentation currency

The amounts shown in these financial statements (including comparatives) are presented in the local currency of the
Republic of Lithuania, Euro (EUR), rounded to EUR thousand, unless otherwise stated.

Starting 1 January 2015 the functional currency of the Company and its subsidiaries aperating in Lithuania is Euro.
The functional currency of subsidiaries in Latvia and Estonia is Euro. The functional cumency of the subsidiary in
Poland is Zloty. ltems included in the financial statements of this subsidiary are measured using its functional
currency.

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded in the functional currency as at the date of the transaction.,
Monetary assets and fiabilities denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the functional currency rate of
exchange as at the date of the statement of financial position.

The assets and liabilities of foreign subsidiary are translated into Eurc at the reporting date using the rate of
exchange as at the reporting date, and its statement of comprehensive income is translated at the weighted average
exchange rates for the year. The exchange differences arising on this translation are recognised in other
comprehensive income, On disposal of a foreign subsidiary, the deferred cumulative amount recognised in other
comprehensive income relating to that foreign operation is recognised in profit (loss).

Non-current receivables from or loans granted to foreign subsidiaries that are neither planned nor likely to be settled
in the future are considered to be a part of the Company’s net investment in the forsign operation. In the Group’s
consolidated financial statements the exchange differences recognized in the separate financial statements of the
subsidiary in relation to these monetary items are reclassified to other comprehensive income. On disposal of a
foreign subsidiary, the deferred cumulative amount recognised in other comprehensive income relating to that foreign
operation is recognised in profit (foss).
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AB INTER RAO LIETUVA, company code 126119913, A.Tuméno str. 4, Vilnius, Lithuania
CONSOLIDATED AND COMPANY'S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 December 2015
(all amounts are in EUR thousand unless otherwise stated)

2 Accounting policies {cont’d})
2.3. Principles of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group include UAB INTER RAQ Lietuva and its subsidiaries as well as
joint venture. The financial statements of the subsidiaries and joint venture are prepared for the same reporting year,
using consistent accounting policies.

Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
investee and has the ability fo affect those returns through its power over the investee. Specifically, the Group
controls an investee if, and only if, the Group has:
- Power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant activities of
the investee);
- Exposure, or rights, 1o variable returns from its involvement with the investee;
- The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voling rights result in control.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date from which control is transferred to the Group and cease to be
consolidated from the date on which control is transferred out of the Group. All intercompany transactions, balances
and unrealised gains and losses on transactions among the Group companies have been eliminated. The equity and
net income attributable to non-controlling interests, if any, are shown separately in the statement of financial position
and the statement of comprehensive income.

Total comprehensive income of a subsidiary is attributed to the non-controlling interest even if that results in a deficit
balance.

Acquisitions and disposals of non-controlling interest by the Group are accounted as equity transaction: the
difference between the carrying value of the net assets acquired from/disposed to the non-controlling interests in the
Group’s financial statements and the acquisition price/proceeds from disposal is accounted directly in equity.

Interest in_a joint venture

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the arrangement have
rights to the net assets of the joint venture. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of control of an
arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities require unanimous consent of the parties
sharing control,

The Group has an interest in a joint venture, which is a jointly controlled entity, whereby the venturers have a
contractual arrangement that establishes joint control over the economic activities of the entity. The agreement
requires unanimous agreement for financial and operating decisions among the venturers. The Group recognises its
interest in the joint venture using the equity method.

Business combinations

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition is measured as the
aggregate of the consideration transterred, measured at acquisition date fair value and the amount of any non-
controlling interest in the acquiree. For each business combination, the acquirer measures the non-controlling interest
in the acquiree either at fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. Acquisition
costs incurred are expensed and included in administrative expenses.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition date fair value of the acquirer’'s previously held
equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date through profit or loss. Any contingent
consideration to be transferred by the acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Subsequent
changes to the fair value of the contingent consideration which is deemed to be an asset or liability, is recognised in
accordance with IAS 39 either in profit or loss or as a change to other comprehensive income. If the contingent
consideration is classified as equity, i is not be remeasured until it is finally setiled within equity.

Gooduwill is initially measured at cost being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred and the
amount recognised for non-controlling interest over the net identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If this
consideration is lower than the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired, the difference is recognised in
profit or loss.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses, Goodwill impairment is
assessed annually. Once recognized, impairment losses are not reversed. For the purpose of impairment testing,
goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group's cash-
generating units that are expected to benefit from the combination, irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of
the acquiree are assigned to those units.

Where goodwill forms part of a cash-generating unit and part of the operation within that unit is disposed of, the
goodwill associated with the operation disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the operation when
determining the gain or foss on disposal of the operation. Goodwill disposed of in this circumstance is measured
based on the relative values of the operation disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating unit retained.
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2 Accounting policies (cont’d)
2.4. Investments (in the Company’s separate accounts)

Interest in a joint venture

The Company has an interest in a joint venture, which is a jointly controlled entity, whereby the venturers have a
contractual arrangement that establishes joint control over the economic activities of the entity. The agreement
requires unanimous agreement for financial and operating decisions among the venturers, The Company accounts
for its interest in the joint venture at cost less impairment,

Interests in subsidiaries

investments in subsidiaries are measured at cost less impairment in the statement of financial position of the
Company. Accordingly, the investment is initially recognised at cost, being the fair value of the consideration given
subsequently adjusted for any impairment losses. The carrying value of the investment is tested for impairment when
svents or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may exceed the recoverable amount (higher of
the two: fair value fess costs to sell and value in use) of the investment. If such indications exist, the Company makes
an estimate of the investment's recoverable amount. Where the carrying amount of an investment exceeds its
estimated recoverable amount, the investment is written down to its recoverable amount. impairment loss is
recognised in the statement of comprehensive income as financial expense for the period.

As at 31 December 2015 and 2014, for the evaluation of impairment of investment into subsidiary Vydmantai wind
park, UAB the value in use concept was applied.

2.5. Intangible assets other than goodwill

intangible assets acquired separately are measured initially at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a
business combination is fair value as at the date of acquisition. Intangible assets are recognised if it is probable that
future economic benefits that are attributable to the asset will flow to the enterprise and the cost of asset can be
measured reliably.

The useful lives of all intangible assets are assessed to be finite.

After initial recognition, intangible assets with finite lives are measured at cost less accumulated amortisation and any
accurnulated impairment losses. Intangible assets are amortised on a straight-line basis over their expected usetul
lives {years), except for the wind farm operating license which validity term is indefinite, but the associated favourable
fixed feed-in tariff expires in 2020.

The amortisation period of the wind farm operating license 9.5 years

Intangible assets are assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be
impaired.

The useful lives, residual values and amortisation method are reviewed annually to ensure that they are consistent
with the expected pattem of economic benefits from items in intangible assets other than goodwill.

2.6. Property, plant and equipment and investment property

Property, plant and equipment and investment property are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses.

The initial cost of property, plant and equipment and investment praperly comprises its purchase price, including non-
refundable purchase taxes and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and
location for its intended use. Expenditures incurred after the property, plant and equipment is ready for its intended
use, such as repair and maintenance costs, are normally charged fo the statement of comprehensive income in the
period the costs are incurred.

The Group has leased plots of land on which it operates wind turbines. Those lease arrangements are classified as
finance leases of the land. The initial cost of land leased is equal to the present value of future lease payments. For
these purposes the applicable lease period was estimated at 20 years and the discount rate applied was 4.8%.
Depreciation of leased land is calculated over the minimum lease period, because the fease period represents useful
life of leased land.
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2 Accounting policies (cont’d)
2.6. Property, plant and equipment and investment property (cont'd)

Depreciation is computed on a straight-line basis over the following estimated useful lives (years):

Land lease 20
Office premises 15
Buildings and structures 8- 20
Machinery and equipment {(wind power plants) 20
Vehicles 5~-10
Other fittings, fixtures, tools and equipment 3-6
Investment property {buildings and structures) 17

The useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed annually to ensure that they are consistent
with the expected pattern of economic benefits from items in property, plant and equipment and investment property.

An item of property, plant and equipment and investment propeity is derecognised upon disposal or when no fulure
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset
{calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is inciuded in
the statement of comprehensive income in the year the asset is derecognised.

2.7. Financial assets

The Group’s and the Company’s financial assets are classified as either financial assets at fair value through profit or
foss, held-to-maturity investments, loans and receivables or available-for-sale financial assets, as appropriate. All
purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade date. When financial assets are recognised
initially, they are measured at fair value, plus, in the case of investments not at fair value through profit or loss,
directly attributable transaction costs.

Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss

The category of financial assets at fair value through profit and loss includes financial assets classified as held for
trading. Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose of selling in the near
term. This category includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the Company that are not designated as
hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by IAS 39. Gains or losses on investments held for trading are
recognised in the statement of comprehensive income. The Group and the Company do not have any material fair
value through profit and loss financial instruments.

Held-to-maturity investments

Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or detsrminable payments and fixed maturity are classified as held-to-
maturity when the Company has the positive intention and ability fo hold to maturity. Investments that are intended to
be held-to-maturity are subsequently measured at amortised cost. Gains and losses are recognised in the statement
of comprehensive income when the investments are derecognised or impaired, as well as through the amortisation
process.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are those non-derivative financial assets that are designated as available-for-sale
or are not classified in financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, held-to-maturity investments and loans and
receivables categories. After initial recognition available-for-sale financial assets are measured at fair value with
unrealized gains or losses {except impairment and gain or losses from foreign currencies exchange) being
recognised in other comprehensive income until the investment is derscognised or untit the investment is determined
to be impaired at which time the cumulative gain or loss previously reported in other comprehensive income is
included in the profit (loss). The Group and the Company does not have any material available-for-sale financial
instruments.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. Recsivables are initially recorded at the fair value of the consideration given. Loans and receivables
are subsequently carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method less any allowance for impairment.
Gains and losses are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income when the loans and receivables are
derecognised or impaired, as well as through the amortisation process.

Allowance for doubtful receivables is evaluated when the indications leading to the impairment of accounts receivable
are noticed and the carrying amount of the receivable is reduced through use of an allowance account. Impaired
debts are derecognised (written off) when they are assessed as uncollectible.
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Accounting policies {cont’d)
2.8. Derecognition of financial assets and liabilities
Financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is
derecognised when:

- the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired;

- the Group and the Company retains the right to receive cash flows from the asset, but has assumed an
obligation to pay them in full without material delay o a third party under a ‘pass through’ arrangement; or

- the Group and the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset and either (a) has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or {b) has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group and the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset and has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor fransferred control of the asset, the
asset is recognised to the extent of the Group’s and the Company’s continuing involvement in the asset. Continuing
involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original
carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Group and the Company could be
required to repay.

Financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expired, When
an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms
of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is freated as a derecognition of the
original liabifity and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in the respective carnrying amounts is
recognised in the statement of comprehensive income,

2.9, Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The Group and the Company uses valuation techniques that
are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the
use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financiat statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
directly or indirectly observable

Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
unohservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group and the
Company determmines whether transfers have occurred between Levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing
categorisation {based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end
of each reporting period.

2.10.Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or net realisable value, after impairment evaluation for obsolete and slow
moving iterns. Net realisable value is the selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the costs of completion,
marketing and distribution. Cost of inventory is determined by the first-in, first-out (FIFO) method. Unrealisable
inventory is fully written-off.

2.11.Cash and cash equivalents

Cash includes cash on hand and cash with banks. Cash equivalents are short-term, highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible to known amounts of cash with original maturities of three months or less and that are subject to
an insignificant risk of change in value.

For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and in current bank
accounts as well as deposits in bank with original term equal to or less than 3 months.
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Accounting policies (cont'd)
2.12. Derivative financial instruments

The Group engages in swap contract for interest rate and the Group and the Company engages in forward contract
for electricity price risk management purposes. Derivative financial instruments are initially recognized at cost.
Subsequent to initial recognition and measurement, outstanding swaps and other derivative financial instruments are
carried in the statement of financial position at the fair value. Fair value is derived from quoted market prices (level 1
in fair value hierarchy), or using the discounted cash flow method applying effective interest rate (level 2 in fair value
hierarchy). The estimated fair values of these contracts are reported on a gross basis as financial assets for contracts
having a posttive fair value, and financial liabilities for contracts with a negative fair value.

Gain or loss from changes in the fair vajue of cutstanding forward coniracts, swaps and other derivative financial
instruments, which are not classified as hedging instruments, are recognized in the statement of comprehensive
income as they arise.

2.13.Hedge accounting

For the purposes of hedge accounting, hedges are classified into two categories: (a) fair value hedges which hedge
the exposure to changes in the fair value of a recognized asset or liability; and (b) cash flow hedges which hedge
exposure to variability in cash flows that is either attributable to a particular risk associated with a recognized asset or
liakility or a forecasted transaction. The Group and the Company use cash flow hedge.

In relation to cash flow hedges, which meet the conditions for hedge accounting, the portion of the gain or loss on the
hedging instrument that is determined to be an effective hedge is recognized initially in other comprehensive income
and the ineffective portion is recognized in the statement of comprehensive income {profit or loss). The gains or
losses on effective cash flow hedges recognized initially in equity are either transferred to the statement of
comprehensive income (profit or loss) in the period in which the hedged {ransaction impacts the statement of
comprehensive income or included in the initial measurement of the cost of the related asset or liability.

For hedges, which do not qualify for hedge accounting, any gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of
the hedging instrument are taken directly to the statement of comprehensive income (profit or loss) for the period.

Hedge accounting is discontinued when the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated or exercised, or no
tonger qualifies for hedge accounting. Any cumulative gain or loss on the hedging instrument recognized in equity
remains in equity until the forecasted transaction occurs. Where the hedged transaction is no longer expected to
occur, the net cumulative gain or loss recognized in equity is fransferred to the statement of comprehensive income
{profit or loss).

In 2015 and 2014 the Group has entered into interest swap agreement with a purpose to hedge itself against a
possible fluctuation/increase of EURIBOR on the loan taken from a bank, i. e. effectively switching the interest into a
fixed rate (Note 14). In 2015 and 2014 the Group and the Company have entered into electricity forward contracts
with a purpose to hedge itself against a possible fluctuation of electricity prices (Note 14).

2.14. Borrowings

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the respective
assets. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period they occur.

The Group capitalises borrowing costs for all qualifying assets where construction was commenced on or afier 1
January 2009. Howsver, there were no borrowing costs matching the capitafisation criteria in 2015 and 2014.

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value of proceeds received, less the costs of transaction. They are
subsequently carried at amortised cost, the difference between net proceeds and redemption value being recognised
in the net profit or loss over the period of the borrowings (except for the capitalized part) using the effective interest
method.
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Accounting policies (cont’d)

2.15. Financial and operating leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is, or contains a lease is based on the substance of the arrangement
at inception date of whether the fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets or
the arrangement conveys a right to use an asset.

Financial lease

Finance leases that transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and benefits incidental to ownership of

the leased item, are capitalised at the commencement of the lease. The Group recognises financial leases as assets
and liabilities in the statement of financial position at amounts equal at the inception of the lease to the fair value of
the leased property or, if lower, to the present value of the minimum lease payments. The rate of discount used when
calculating the present value of minimum payments of financial lease is the interest raie implicit in the financial lease
agreement, when it Is possible to determine it, in other cases, Group’s incremental interest rate on borrowings
applies. Directly attributable initial costs are inciuded into the asset value. Lease payments are apportioned between
the finance charges and reduction of the lease liability so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining
balance of the liability.

The depreciation is accounted for financial lease assets. The depreciafion policy for leased assets is consistent with
that for depreciable assets that are owned. The ieased assets cannot be depreciated over a period longer than lease
term, unless the Group, according to the lease contract, obtains ownership at the end of the lease term.

Operating lease

Leases where the lessor retains ali significant risks and benefits of ownership of the asset are classified as operating
leases. Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in the statement of comprehensive income on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

2.16.Income tax

The Group companies are taxed individually, irrespective of the overall results of the Group. Income tax charge is
based on profit for the year and considers deferred taxation. The charge for faxation included in these financial
statements is based on the calculation made by the management in accordance with tax legislation of the Republic of
Lithuania, the Republic of Latvia, the Republic of Estonia and the Republic of Poland.

The standard income tax rate in Lithuania is 15%, in the Republic of Latvia — 15%, in the Republic of Poland — 19%,
in the Republic of Estonia — 0% (though dividends paid are taxable).

Starting from 1 January 2014 the tax loss carry forward that is deductible cannot exceed 70% of the current financial
year taxable profit in Lithuania. Tax losses can be carried forward for indefinite period, except for the losses incurred
as a result of disposal of securities and/or derivative financial instruments. Such carrying forward is disrupted if the
company changes its activities due to which these losses were incurred except when the company does not continue
its activities due to reasons which do not depend on the company itself. The losses trom disposal of securities and/or
derivative financial instruments can be carried forward for 5 consecutive years and only be used to reduce the
taxable income earned from the transactions of the same nature.

Tax losses in the Republic of Latvia incurred in or before 2007 may be carried forward eight years. Tax losses
incurred in 2008 and subsequent years may be carried forward indefinitely.

Tax losses in the Republic of Poland may be carried forward to the following five tax years to offset profits from all
sources that are derived in those years. Up to 50% of the original loss may offset profits in any of the five tax
years. Losses may not be carried back.

Deferred taxes are calculated using the liability method. Deferred taxes reflect the net tax effects of temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and labilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts
used for income tax purposes. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using the tax rates expected to apply
to taxable income in the years in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled based on
tax rates enacted or substantially enacted at the date of the statement of financial position.

Deferred tax assets have been recognised in the statement of financial position to the extent the management
believes it will be realised in the foreseeable future, based on taxable profit forecasts. If it is belisved that part of the
deferred tax is not going to be realised, this part of the deferred tax asset is not recognised in the financial
statements.
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Accounting policies (cont’d}
2.17. Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the
enterprise and the amount of the revenue can be measured reliably. Sales are recognised net of VAT and discounts.

Sale of electricity is recognised at the time of delivery, based on the value of the volume supplied. Physical electricity
sales and purchase contracts are accounted for on accrual basis as they are contracted with the Group’s expected
purchase, sale or usage requirements,

Physical electricity sales and purchases are done through the power exchange {Nord Pool). The sales and purchases
are netted on the Company and the Group level on an hourly basis and posted sither as revenus or cost, according
to whether the Company and the Group is a net seller or a net buyer during any particular hour.

Revenue from sales of produced electricity is recognised on accrual basis when transfer of risks and rewards has
been completed.

Revenue from services is recognised when services are rendered.
Dividend income is recognised when the dividends are declared,

interest income or expense are recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR), which is the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash paymenis or receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument to the
net carrying amount of the financiat asset or liability. 1t is included in finance income or expenses in the profit (loss)
staternent.

2.18.lmpairment of assets
Financial assets
Financial assets are reviewed for impairment at each reporting date.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, whenever it is probable that the Company and the Group will not collect
ail amounts due according to the contractual terms of loans or receivables, an impairment or bad debt loss is
recognised in the statement of comprehensive income. The reversal of impairment losses previously recognised is
recorded when the decrease in impairment loss can be justified by an event occurring after the write-down. Such
reversal is recorded in the statement of comprehensive income. However, the increased carrying amount is only
recognised to the extent it does not exceed the amortised cost that would have been had the impairment not been
recognised.

if there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on an unquoted equity instrument that is not carried at fair value
because its lair value cannot be reliably measured, has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the
difference between the carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the
current market rate of return for a similar financial asset.

Other assets (exciuding goodwill

Other assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that carrying
amount of an asset may not be recoverable. Whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable
amount, an impairment loss is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income. Reversal of impairment losses
recognised in prior years is recorded when there is an indication that the impairment losses recognised for the asset
no longer exist or have decreased. The reversal is accounted for in the same caption of the statement of
comprehensive income as the impairment loss.

2.19.Use of judgments and estimates in the preparation of financial statements

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with International Financial Reporting Standards requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and
expenses and disclosure of contingencies. The significant areas of estimation used in the preparation of the
accompanying financial statements relate to depreciation and amortisation (Notes 2.5, 2.6, 4, 5 and 13}, impairment
evatuation of goodwill, including allocation of Group assets to cash generating units (Notes 2.3 and 4), the net
revenue presentation (Note 2.17). The management also made a judgement regarding the provision for the wind
power plants dismantling, which was considered not material taking into account the passage of time and expecied
value of the metal scrap remaining. Future events may occur which will cause the assumptions used in arriving at the
estimates to change. The effect of any changes in estimates will be recorded in the financial staternents, when
determinable.
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Accounting policies (cont’d)

2.20. Contingencies

Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the financial statemenis, except for contingent fiabilities associated with
business acquisitions. They are disclosed unless the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits is remote.

A contingent asset is not recognised in the financial statements but disclosed when an inflow or economic benefits
are probable.

2,21, Subsequent events
Subsequent events that provide additional information about the Group's position at the date of statement of financial

position (adjusting events) are reflected in the financial statements. Subsequent events that are not adjusting events
are disclosed in the notes when material.
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Segment information

Fer management purposes, the Group is organized into business units based on type of activities and has two
reportable segments:

« Purchase and sales of electricity;
« Production and sales of electricity.

The segment of purchase and sales of electricity includes operations of UAB INTER RAO Lietuva, S1A INTER RAO
Latvia, OU INTER RAO Eesti and Sp. z o.0. 1BL Polska. The Group and the Company have entered into contracts for
the purpose of the receipt and delivery of electricity in accordance with the entity’s expected purchase, sale or usage
requirernents. Furthermore, the Group and the Company also perform trading sales of electricity on the power
sxchange.

The segment of production and sales of eleciricity includes operations of Vydmantai wind park, UAB. Electricity is
produced by wind turbines and sold to AB Lietuvos energijos gamyba.

For management purposes, the Company is organized into a single business unit - purchase and sales of electricity,
therefore this note does not include any disclosures on operating segments on the Company’s level as they are the
same as information provided by the Company in these financial statements.

No operating segments have been aggregated to form the above reportable cperating segments.

Segment performance is evaluated based on operating profit or loss and is measured consistently with profit from
operations in the consolidated financial statements.

Finance income and expenses are allocated to individual segments as the underlying instruments are managed for
each separate segment separately.

Transfer prices between operating segments are based on the prices set by the management, which management
considers being similar to transactions with third parties.

Operating Segmenis

The following tables present revenue, profit and certain asset and liability information regarding the reportable
cperating segmernts:

Group Electricity Electricity Adjustments

Year ended 31 December purchases and  production Total and

2015 sales and sales  Segments eliminations  Consclidated
Revenue

External cusiomers 180,732 5,962 186,694 - 186,694
Total revenue 180,732 5,962 186,694 - - 186,694
Results

Depreciation and amortisation 147 2,340 2,487 - 2,487
Interest income - 23 23 - 23
interest expenses 112 782 894 - 894
Income tax expenses 2,797 345 3,142 - 3,142
Share of loss of the joint

venture - - - 2 2
Segment operating

profit/profit from operations 20,079 2,719 22,798 - 22,798
Segment assets _ 35,585 32,100 67,685 - 67,685
Segment liabilities 20,844 18,660 39,504 3,183 42,687

Segment assets and liabilities are presented after elimination of intercompany assets and liabilities within the
segment, which are eliminated on consolidation.

Other disclosures - - - 129 129
Interest in a joint venture 14 - - - 14
Capital expenditure

Capital expenditure consists of additions of property, plant and equipment, intangible assets, investment properties
and assets from the acquisition of subsidiaries.
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Segment information (cont’d)

Group Electricity Electricity Adjustments

Year ended 31 purchases and  production and

December 2014 sales and sales  Total Segments  eliminations Consolidated
Revenue

External customers 205,432 4,930 210,362 - 210,362
Total revenue 205,432 4,930 210,362 - 210,362
Results

Depreciation and

amortisation 128 2,344 2,472 - 2472
Interest income - 23 23 - 23
Interest expenses 63 920 983 - 983
Income tax expenses 1,893 124 2,017 - 2.017
Share of loss of the

joint venture - - - 52 52
Segment operating

profit/profit from

operations 13,332 1,700 15,032 - 15,032
Segment assets 31,052 33,780 64,832 189 65,021
Segment liabilities 22,761 22,400 45,161 1,948 47,109
Segment assets and liabilities are presented after elimination of intercompany assets and liabilities within the
segment, which are eliminated on consolidation,

Other disclosures

Interest in a joint venture - - - 185 195
Capital expenditure 82 - - - 82

Capital expenditure consists of additions of property, plant and equipment, intangible assets, investment properties
and assets from the acquisition of subsidiaries.

31 December 31 Pecember

Reconciliation of liabilities 2015 2014

Segment operating liabilities 39,504 45,161
Deferred tax liabilities 918 833
Current tax payable 2,265 1,115
Group total liabilities 42,687 47,109

31 December
2014

31 December

Reconciliation of assets 2015

Segment operating assets 67,685 64,832
Prepaid income tax _ - 189
Group total assets 67,685 65,021
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Segment information {cont'd)

Geographical information

The following table presents the Group’s and the Company's geographical information on revenue based on the

location of the customers:

Group Company
2015 2014 2015 2014
Lithuania® 148,491 170,496 142,528 165,566
Latvia 12,078 30,155 5,207 22,534
Estonia™ 14,607 6,512 8,629 41
Poland 10,372 2,596 - "
Belarus - - - -
Russia 1,146 603 1,146 603
Total revenue 186,694 210,362 157,510 188,744
* Inctudes also sales by Lithuanian company to the power exchange
*Represents trading sales on the power exchange.
Revenue from each single customer exceeding 10% of the Group’s and the Company's revenue in 2015 amounted to
EUR 33 million, EUR 27 million and EUR 26 million (2014: EUR 48 million, EUR 36 miilion and EUR 30 million),
Revenue from each single customer exceeding 10% of the Group’s electricity production and sales segment revenue
in 2015 amounted to EUR 6 million (2014: EUR 5 million).
The major part of the Group’s and Company's non-current assets is located in Lithuania. Non-current assets for this
purpose consist of property, plant and equipment, investment property, intangible assets, non-current financial and
other assets.
Intangible assets
Contract of Other
Group Operating emission intangible
license reduction units assets Goodwill Total
Cost
Balance as at 31 December 2013 11,397 130 27 2,875 14,428
Additions - - 65 - 65
Balance as al 31 December 2014 11,397 130 a2 2,875 14,494
Additions T S 3 - 3
Balance as at 31 December 2015 11,397 130 95 2,875 14,487
Accumulated amortization and impairment
Balance as at 31 December 2013 2,926 130 2 1,159 4,217
Amoriization for the period 1,213 - 7 - 1,220
Balance as at 31 December 2014 4,139 130 g 1,159 5,437
Amorntization for the period 1,213 - 30 - 1,243
Balance as at 31 December 2015 5,352 130 39 1,159 6,680
Net book value as at 31 December 2013 8,471 - 25 1,716 10,212
Net book value as at 31 December 2014 7,258 » 83 1,716 9,057
Net book value as at 31 December 2015 6,045 . 56 1,716 7,817

The above intangible assets were identified during the purchase price allocation as a result of the business
combination in 2011, when the Company established a 100% owned entity UAB IRL Wind and the Group acquired
100% UAB Véju spektras shares with the purpose to acquire wind energy generation business. UAB Véjy spektras
was later reorganized by spinning oft and transferring separate wind energy generation business to a newly
established Vydmantai wind park, UAB. The differences between the amounts paid and the fair value of the acquired

identifiable assets and liabilities were accounted for as goodwill.

Operating license Is a license to produce wind generated electricity with an embedded favorable fixed feed-in tariff
applied untit 2020 (the license itself has no validity term although the benefit associated is temporal).

Amortization expenses and impairment expenses of intangible assets are included into the general and

administrative expenses caption in the statement of comprehensive income.
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Intangible assets (cont’d)

Goodwill impairment

For the purpose of the impairment test, the goodwill as at 31 December 2015 and 2014 was allocated to the following
cash generating unit (CGU) — wind energy generation business unit — Vydmantai wind park, UAB.

The recoverable amount of the cash generating unit as at 31 December 2015 was determined based on the value in
use calculation using discounted cash flow projections based on the sixteen years (seventeen years in 2014)
financial forecasts prepared by the management. The pre-tax discount rate of 9.5 % in 2015 was applied (9.9% in
2014). Defined petiod forecast represents estimated usage of wind power plants, for the revenue forecast a fixed
feed-in tariff was applied until 2020, starting with 2021 market prices will be applicable. Significant assumptions used
for the assessment of the value in use in 2015 and 2014 are described below:

1) the availability of wind turbines - will not fluctuate significantly over the first half of the forecasted period and
in the remaining period will decrease due to a normal wear and tear of the equipment, regular maintenance
of which is performed,;

2) the efficiency of wind turbines (depending on the wind speed) - efficiency level in a fong run is forecasted at
the slightly lower than historical level due to a rather high level of unpredictability,

3) the electricity sales price - revenues are expected to remain rather stable until 2020 due to a feed-in tariff
applied, which ensures the purchases of electricity at a stable price, in the following years, electricity will be
sold at market price, which is expected to be initfally lower than the feed-in tariff and to increase over the
period by 4-6% growth rate. Such forecasts are based on the Group's management estimale, since there is
no reliable long-term external prognosis; in addition, the Group is one of the most experienced players in this
market.

As a result of the analysis above, the management did not recognise additional goodwill impairment, The goodwill
impairment charge of EUR 869 thousand was recognised in previous years. Goodwill impairment may not be
reversed in the future under any circumstances.

In the opinion of the Group’s management, the most important assumptions are the efficiency level (see above), the
discount rate and the electricity prices after 2020. The management strongly believes that in the long run the
efficiency level can only increase {based on historical trends), which would have a positive impact on Group’s results;
therefore sensitivity analysis for this element was not performed. The discount rate is based on the specific
circumstances of the Group and its operating segments and is derived from its weighted average cost of capital {post
tax) ~ WACC (8.1% as at 31 December 2015 and 8.4% as at 31 December 2014). If the discount rate increased by
1%, no additional impairment would occur in 2015 and 2014, in case all the rest of the assumptions remain constant.
Electricity price cannot be assessed accurately at the moment, however, if conservative approach would be used,

i.e. the prices of electricity starting 2021 would be changed to the average price of the past three years (2013 — 2015)
inflated using forecasted long term inflation rate and starting 2022 would be increased by 3% each year through the
remaining petiod of the forecast and all the rest of the assumptions remained constant, additional impairment of
goodwill and ficenses of EUR 2 million would occur at the end of 2015, Due 1o decreased level of interest rates in
world markets and due to uncertainties related to the forecasts of possible electricity prices, at the time of preparing
these financial statements the management of the Group did not expect any significant changes in the assumptions
used, including the discount rate and the electricity prices within the next 12 months of the date of the statement of
financial position.
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Property, plant and equipment

Movement of property, plant and equipment in 2015 and 2014 is presented below:

Group
Buildings Machinery Other property
and Office and plant and
Land*  structures premises equipment  equipment Total
Cost
Balance as at 31 December 2013 873 3,850 1,132 . éj ,438 155 27,448
Additions - _ . _ 17 17
Wiite-offs and disposals . . . (14) o { 25) { 39)
Balance as at 31 December 2014 873 3,850 1,132 21,424 147 27,426
Additions : : : “. R - =
Write-offs and disposals - - - - (19) (19}
Balance as at 31 December 2015 873 3,850 1,132 21,424 139 27,418
Accumulated depreciation
Balance as at 31 December 2013 95 458 133 2 472 58 3,214
Depreciation for the period 41 171 75 917 38 1,240
Write-offs and disposals . . . ( 14) (23) (37)
Balance as at 31 December 2014 136 629 208 3,375 69 4417
Depreciation for the period 41 166 75 917 33 1,232
Write-offs and disposals - - . - (19) {19)
Balance as at 31 December 2015 177 705 283 4,292 83 5,630
Net book value as at 31
December 2013 778 3,392 899 18,966 99 24,234
Net book value as at 31
December 2014 737 3,221 924 18,049 78 23,009
Net bool value as at 31
December 2015 696 3,055 849 17,132 56 21,788

*Land balance represents captalised financial land lease.
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Property, plant and equipment (cont’d)

Company

Cost

Balance as at 31 December 2013
Additions

Write-oifs and disposals

Balance as at 31 December 2014
Additions

Write-offs and disposals

Balance as at 31 December 2015

Accumulated depreciation
Balance as at 31 December 2013
Depreciation for the period
Write-offs and disposals

Balance as at 31 December 2014
Depreciation for the period
Whrite-offs and disposals

Balance as at 31 December 2015

Net book value as at 31 December 2013
Net book value as at 31 December 2014
Net book value as at 31 December 2015

Machinery  Other property

Office and plant and
premises  equipment equipment Total
1,132 14 124 1,270
- - 17 17
- { 14} {19} {33)
1,132 - 122 1,254
- - 11 11
- - (17} {7
1,132 - 1186 1,248
133 13 37 183
74 1 34 109
- (14 {19 (33)
207 - 52 259
76 - 30 106
- - {(17) (17
283 - 65 348
999 L 87 1,087
925 - 70 995
849 - 51 900

The depreciation charge of the Group’s and the Company’s property, plant and equipment for the year 2015 amounts
to EUR 1,232 thousand and EUR 106 thousand, respectively (EUR 1,240 thousand and EUR 109 thousand in the
year 2014, respectively). These amounts are included inte the general and administrative expenses in the statement
of comprehensive income except for the amount of EUR 1,125 in 2015 {EUR 1,129 thousand in 2014), which is
included in the cost of sales in the Group's statement of comprehensive incorne.

Land was leased under finance lease agreements (Note 13) in 2015 and 2014. In 2013 the lease contract of buildings
and structures was refinanced by a long term loan and buildings and structures, machinery and equipment with the

net book value of EUR 21,270 thousand are pledged to the bank to secure the loans received by the Group.

There were no material fully depreciated property, plant and equipment in the Group and the Company as at 31

December 2015 and 2014.
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Interest in a joint venture

As at 31 December 2015 and 2014 the Company had a 49.99% interest in UAB Alproka, a jointly controlted entity,
which is engaged in the development of real estate projects (also see Note 1).

UAB Alproka is a private entity, not listed. The following table illustrates summarized financial information of the
Group's investment into UAB Alproka, which is accounted for using the equity method:

As at 31 As at 31
December December

Joint venture’s statement of financiat position 2015 2014 _
Current assels 262 392

Non-current assets 12 14

Current liabilities {15) (15)

Non-current liabilities - -

Equity 259 391

Share of joint venture’s equity 129 195

Joint venture's revenue and profit

Revenue 118 193

Profit (loss) 3 105

Other non-current financial assets

Group _ Company
As at 31 As at 31 As at 31 As at 31
December December December December
2015 - 2014 2015 2014
Non-current deposit 1,000 1,000 - -
Non-current receivables 17 60 - -
Non-current guarantees - 167 - 167
Availabie-for-sale investments 41 - 41 44
1,058 1,227 41 211

As at 31 December 2015 and 2014 other non-current assets of the Group comprise two 4% and 0,45% annual
interest deposits in equal amounts of EUR 500 thousand in Swedbank AB till 2016, which are a mandatory guarantee
under the credit agreement, which is disclosed under Note 12.

Trade receivables

As at 31 December 2015 and 2014 the Group's and the Company's trade receivables consisted of receivables for
supplied electricity.

Group Company
As at 31 As at 31 As at 31 Asat 31
December December December December
2015 2014 2015 2014

Trade receivables, gross 15,261 17,242 13,190 15,309
Less: allowance for doubtful trade
receivables 9) {3 9 (3

15,252 17,239 13,181 15,306

Decrease in trade receivables in 2015 is mainly related to decreased sales in Decemnber comparing to prior year.

The Group and the Company as at 31 December 2015 had EUR 9 thousand of doubtful receivables (EUR 3
thousand as at 31 December 2014).

There were no significant past due trade receivables as at 31 December 2015 and 2014 in the Group and in the
Company.

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally coliectible on 2-30 days terms.

29




9

10

1"

AB INTER RAO LIETUVA, company code 126119913, A.Tuméno sir. 4, Vilnius, Lithuania
CONSOLIDATED AND COMPANY'S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 December 2015

{all amounts are in EUR thousand unless otherwise stated)

Accrued income and other receivables

As at 31 December 2015 the other receivables of the Group mainly consisted of accrued income amounting to
EUR 782 thousand (2014 — EUR 1,939 thousand), which represent eamed but not invoiced electiicity sales
revenues. The decrease of accrued income is related to the decrease in revenues in SIA INTER RAO Latvia.

There were no past due other receivables of the Group and the Company as at 31 December 2015 and 2014.
Cash and cash equivalents

Group Company

As at 31 As at 31 As at 31 As at 31
December December December December

2015 2014 2015 2014
Cash at bank 19,765 11,228 15,707 8,352
19,755 11,228 15,707 8,352

The significant increase in Group’s and Company’s cash at bank is mainly related to significantly increased
profitability.

Reserves

Legal reserve

Legal reserve is a compulsory reserve under the Lithuanian legisiation. Annual transfers of not less than 5% of net
profit are compuisory until the reserve reaches 10% of the share capital.

As at 31 December 2015 and 2014 the Company’s legal reserve was fully formed.

In 2015 the Company’s subsidiary Vydmantai wind park, UAB made a transfer to legal reserve in the amount of EUR
34 thousand (in 2014 - 218 thousand).

Cash flow hedge reserve

This reserve represents the effective part of the change in fair vaiue of the derivative financial instruments (interest
rate swaps and electricity forward contracts), used by the Group and the Company to secure the cash flows from
interest rate and electricity price change risk, at the reporting date. The reserve is accounted for according to the
requirements of IAS 39 (Note 14).
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12 Borrowings
As at 31 December the financial debts consisted of:

Group Company

Asat31 Asat3l Asat31 Asat3t
December December December December

2015 2014 2015 2014
Non-current borrowings 13,750 17,050 - -
Current portion of non-current borrowings 3,300 3,300 - -
Gther current financial debts (a) 6,297 3,051 6,297 3,051

23,347 23,401 6,297 3,051

in 2013 upon the merger of Vydmantai wind park, UAB and UAB IRL. Wind, the Group company Vydmantai wind
park, UAB, signed the agreement with Swedbank AB, refinancing the loan and financial lease agreements of UAB
IRL Wind which ceased the activities after the merger, according to which afl land lease rights, buildings and
structures, machinery and equipment, with the net book value of EUR 21,270 thousand and 100 % of Vydmantai
wind park, UAE shares are pledged. Interest rate applied is 6 months EURIBOR + 2.45 %. The loan is denominated
in EUR and the final repayment date is 30 June 2020.

According to the agreement above, the subsidiary Vydmantai wind park, UAB has to comply with certain financial and
non-financial covenants, one of which is debt service coverage ratio during the term of the agreement. As at 31
December 2015 the company complied with this ration. As of 31 December 2014 the company did not comply with
this rativ. However, till 31 December 2014 the bank had confirmed in writing that it was informed about the Vydmantai
wind park, UAB noncompliance with these terms stated in the credit agreement and that it will not require early
repaymant of the loan because of this incompliance.

{a) The Company entered into loan agreements with the shareholders RAQ Nordic Oy and UAB Scaent Baltic in 2015
and in 2014. The loans which were outstanding as at 31 December 2014 were repaid in 2015 and new loans
withdrawn in 2015. The interest rates are equal to average interest rate of loans by cornmercial banks of the Republic
of Finland granted to new business (non-financial corporations} over 1 million EUR. The loans are denominated in
EUR and the final repayment date is 31 March 2016. Interest rate applicable as at 31 December 2015 was 1.9%
(2.19% as at 31 December 2014).

interest rate applicable as at 31 December 2015 was 2.05 % (2.84% as at 31 December 2014).
Future loan payments under the above mentioned loan contracts as at 31 December 2015 and 2014 are as follows:

Group - Company

Asat31 Asat31 Asat 31 Asatdt
December December December December

2015 2014 2015 2014
Within one year 9,597 6,351 6,297 3,051
From one fo five years 13,750 13,200 - -
After five years - 3,850 - .
Total financial lease obligations 23,347 23,401 6,297 3,051
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Financial lease

The Group leases land under financial lease contracts with the net book value of EUR 696 thousand as at 31
December 2015 (EUR 737 thousand as af 31 December 2014). The contractual lease terms are diverse, but for the
financial reporting purpose, the judgmental period of 20 years from the inception date (representing usage of wind
farm)} was used by the management. The interest rate applied is 4.8%.

Future minimal lease payments under the above mentioned financial lease contracts as at 31 December 2015 and
2014 are as follows:
As at 31 As at 31
December December

2016 2014

Within one year 70 68
From one to five years 279 349
After five years 754 755
Total financial lease obligations 1,103 1,172
Interest (343) (396)
Present value of financial lsase obligations 760 776
Financial lease obligations are accounted for as:

- current 33 68

- pon-current 727 708
Financial lease obligations are denominated in EUR.
Derivative financial instruments

Group Company

Asat3l Asat31 Asat31 Asat3

1

December December December December

2015 2014 2075 2014

Derivative financial instruments (non-current part) - assets - 25 232 26
Derivative financial instruments (current par) - assets - 56 578 56
Accounts receivable for derivative financial instruments - - 72 -
Derivative financial instruments (non-current part) - liabilities (533) {476) {205) -
Derivative financial instruments (cutrent part) - liabilities (823) { 323) (522) (34)
Accounts payable for derivative financial instruments (42) - (42) -
Total derivative financiat instruments {1,398) (718) 113 43

As at 31 December 2015 and 2014, the Group’s company Vydmantai wind park, UAB had an interest rate swap
agreement for purpose of future cash flow hedge. On 29 June 2012 the Group has concluded interest rate swap
agreement for the period from 17 July 2012 to 17 October 2020. The Group’s cotpany pays a fixed interest rate at
1.65 % and receives a floating interest rate at 6-month EURIBOR on a notional amount set in the agreement. The
notional amount of the transaction at the inception moment was EUR 12,500 thousand and is amortised over the
period of validity of the derivative. The notional amount of the transaction after the merger in 2013 was increased to
EUR 23,300 thousand. The interest rate swap is being used to hedge the exposure to changes in the market based
rates and to secure the cash flows for the loan {Note 12).

In 2015 and 2014 the Group’s company OU INTER RAO Eesti signed electricity forward contacts for the purposes of
future cash flow hedge. The forward contracts are for 2016, 2017, 2018 and 2019 years.

The fair value of derivative financial instruments is measured by management at each reporting date. The change in
fair value of the effective part of interest rate swap and electricity forward contracts is recognised in other
comprehensive income and the change in fair value of the non-effective part of interest rate swap and electricity
forward contracts is recognised directly in finance income {costs) in the statement of comprehensive income.
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14 Derivative financial instruments (cont’d)

The fair values of interest rate swap contract designated to hedge interest rate risk and slectricity forward contract of

the Group are presented below:

As at 31 As at 31
December 2015 December 2014
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
Interest rate swap contract
Fair value (level 2) - 829 799
Electricity forward contract
Fair value {level 1) - 727 82 -
The fair values of electricity forward contract of the Company are presented below:
As at 31 As at 31
December 2015 December 2014
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
Electricity forward contract
Fair value {level 1) 810 727 83 34

The following table summarizes amounts recognised in other comprehensive income during the petiod and in the

finance costs in the statement of comprehensive income;

Group Company
As at 31 As at 31 As at 31 As at 31
December December December December
2015 2014 2014

Recognised:
Gain (loss) on interest rate swap contract 170 { 357) - -
Gain (loss) on electricity forward contract (809) 218 34 90
Recognised in the statement of
comprehensive income:
Change in accrued interest expenses 1 6 - -
Realized part of electricity forward contract (2 136 {3) 41
Recognised in other comprehensive

income:
Gain (loss) on interest rate swap contract

{effective pan) 169 { 363} - -
Gain (loss) on electricity forward contract

{effective part) (807) a2 37 48
Income tax effect 85 54 (12) -

15 Trade payables
Group Company

As at 31 As at 31
December December

Asatdl  Asat3i
December December
2015 2014

10,923 15,700
131 210

2015 2014
Payables to electricity suppliers (Note 26) 10,946 15,723
Payables to other suppliers 182
11,108 16,076

11,054 15,910

Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are normally settled on 20-day terms.
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Other current liabilities

Group Company

Asat 31 As at 31 As at 31 As at 31
December December December December

2015 2014 2015 2014

VAT payable 2,456 3,567 1,999 2,908
Employment related fiabilities 200 161 162 140
Other current liabilitiss 137 192 54 62

2,793 3,920 2,215 3,110
Sales

Group Company
2015 2014 2005 2014

Revenue from sales of electricity 180,732 205,432 157,510 188,744
Revenue from produced electricity sales 5,957 4,808 - -
Other sales revenue 5 22 - -

186,694 210,362 157,510 188,744

The decrease in revenue of the Group and the Company comparing to 2014 is due to decrease in electricity prices.

Cost of sales

Group Company
2015 2014 215 2014
Cost of purchase of electricity” 163,232 184,152 131,434 168,585
Transmission network service cost 2,067 2,603 2,067 2,604
Depreciation on wind park 1,084 1,088 - -
Other expenses*™ 709 750 - -

157,092 188,583 133,501 171,189

* Cost of purchased electricity also includes the fees paid during the year and accrued as at the balance shest date
for not acquired agreed quantity of electricity.
** Other expenses rmainly comprise maintenance of wind park.

The decrease in cost of sales of the Group and the Company comparing to 2014 is due to decrease in electricity
prices.
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12 General and administrative expenses

Group Company
2015 2014 2015 2014
Wages, salaries and social security 2,357 2,173 1,890 1,757
Depreciation and amoriization 1,362 1,343 147 128
Support (charity) 1,172 1,152 1,150 1,151
Electricity selling expenses 331 688 286 322
Consulting setvices expenses 531 284 199 173
Transport expenses 312 275 303 264
Professional services expenses 144 150 287 105
Business trips 78 122 77 117
Repair and maintenance 34 38 30 34
Tax expenses 64 69 48 46
Bank services 18 42 15 39
Rent 46 52 5 14
Trainings and seminars 16 13 18 13
Representation expenses 61 65 58 65
Other general and administrative expenses 277 270 203 215

6,804 6,736 4,712 4,443

20 Finance income and expenses

In 2015 and 2014 the Group’s finance expenses mainly comprise interest expenses — EUR 894 thousand and EUR
983 thousand, respectively.

In 2015 Company’s finance expenses mainly are compiised of impairment of investments -~ EUR 455 thousand (in
2014 finance expenses mainly comprised of impairment of investments - EUR 290 thousand).

21 Income tax

Group Company
2015 2014 2015 2014
Components of income tax expenses
Current year income tax expenses 2,972 1,905 2,806 1,905
Deterred income tax (benefit) expenses 170 112 {111} -
Income tax expenses charged to statement of
comprehensive income 3,142 2,017 2,695 1,905
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Income tax {cont’d)

As at 31 December 2015 and 2014 the deferred income tax asset and liability was accounted for at 15 % and

consisted of:

Group

Deferred income tax asset
Tax deductible goodwill recognized
upon merger a)

Elsctricity derivative contracts
Cash flow hedge

Less: valuation allowance
Deferred income tax asset, net of
vatuation allowance

Deferred income tax lability

Equity method

intangible assets b}
Depreciation differences

Deferred income tax liability

Deferred income tax, net

Presented in the statement of financial position as follows:

Deferred income tax asset
Deferred income tax liability

Company

Deferred income tax asset
Impairment of investment in joint
venture

Electricity derivative contracts

Less: valuation aliowance
Deferred income tax asset, net of
valuation allowance

Deferred income tax liability
Electricity derivative contracts
Detferred income tax liability

Deferred income tax, net

Presented in the statement of financial position as follows:

Deferred income tax asset
Deferred income tax liability

As at 31 As at 31
December 2015 December 2014
1,358 1,486
109 -
65 90
1,532 1,576
(20} { 29)
(907) {(1,089)
(1,523} (1,291)
(2,450) (2,409)
(918} ~(833)
(918) (833)
As at 31 As at 31
December 2015 December 2014
111 -
109 -
220 -
{121) -
{121) -
99 -
99 -

a) As a result of the merger of Vydmantai wind park, UAB and UAB IRL Wind in 2013 in accordance with tax
{egislation the Group company Vydmantai wind park, UAB qualifies for recognition of tax deductible goodwill, which
may be amortized per 15 years starting the merger date, the amount of such goodwill was estimated as EUR
12,477 thousand. Difference between the tax and financial goodwill created a deferred tax asset {which was
assessed as recoverable) in the amount of EUR 1,614 thousand which was recognized in the statement of
comprehensive income upon merger. The decrease represents amortisation of tax goodwill during 2015.

b) Due to intangible assets (related to Vydmantai wind park, UAB) identified during the acquisition, a deferred
income tax liability amounting to EUR 1,720 thousand was recognized. The decrease in deferred income tax liability

in 2015 compating to 2014 represents the amortisation of the related intangible assets during 2015.
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Income tax {cont'd)
The changes of temporary differences before and after tax effect in the Group were as follows:

Recognised in

Balance as at other Balance as at

31 December comprehensive Recognised in 31 December
Group 2014 income profit or loss 2015
Equity method ( 195} - 66 (129)
Electricity derivative contracts - 807 {80} 727
intangible assets (7,258) - 1,213 (6,045)
Tax deductible goodwill recognized upon merger 9,906 - (856) 9,050
Depreciation differences (8,605) . {1,546) (10,151}
Cash flow hedge 599 . {189) - 430
Total temporary differences (5,553) 638 {1,203) (6,118)
Deferred income tax, net (833} 85 (170) (918)

Recognised in

Balance as at other Balance as at

31 December comprehensive Recognised in 31 December
Group 2013 income profit or loss 2014
Equity method {273) - 78 { 195)
Intangible assets (8,471) - 1,213 {7,258}
Tax deductible goodwill recognized upon merger 10,405 - {499} 9,906
Depreciation differences {7,064) - (1,541) (8,605)
Cash flow hedge 236 ) 363 - 599
Total temporary differences (5,167} 363 { 749) (5,553)
Deferred income tax, net (775} 54 (112) {833)

The reported amount of income tax expenses attributable to the year can be reconciled to the amount of income tax

expenses thal would result from applying statutory income tax rate to pre-tax income as follows:

Group Company
2015 2014 2015 2014

Profit (loss) before tax 21,961 14,360 18,815 13,105
Income tax expenses computed at 15% in 2015

and 2014 3,294 2,154 2,822 1,966
Deferred income tax assets previously not

recognized - - {43) -
Permanent differences (152) (137} (84) {61)
income tax expenses charged to statement of

comprehensive income 3,142 2,017 2,695 1,905

The amount of deferred asset not recognized in financial statements of the Group as at 31 December 2015 is EUR

94 thousand (EUR 212 as at 31 December 2014) and it has no expiry date.
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Basic and diluted earnings per share (EUR)

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit attributable to the shareholders by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares issued and paid during the year. The Group has no diluting instruments;
therefore, basic and diluted earnings per share are squal.

Calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share is presented below:

Group 2015 2014
Net profit attributable o the shareholders 18,819,000 12,342,447
Number of shares, opening balance 20,000,000 20,000,600
Number of shares, closing balance 20,000,600 20,000,000
Weighted average number of shares 20,000,000 20,000,000
Basic and diluted earnings per share (EUR) 0.94 0.62
Dividends per share (EUR)
Company

2015 2014
Approved dividends (EUR)* 11,200,000 3,765,060
Number of shares {unitsy** 20,000,060 20,000,000
Approved dividends per share (EUR) 0.56 0.19

* The year when the dividends are approved.
** At the date when dividends are approved.

Financial assets and liabilities and risk management

Credit risk

The Group and the Company has a fairly significant concentration of trading counterparties. Trade receivables from
the main three customers of the Group and the Company amounted approximately 50% of the total Group’s and
Company’s trade receivables as at 31 December 2015 {50% each, as at 31 December 2014). The Group’s and the
Company’s procedures are in force to ensure on a permanent basis that sales are made to customers with an
appropriate credit history, which mainly are the state owned and financially stable private entities, and the majority of
transactions is carried out through the market intermediary - electricity exchange Nord Pool.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying amount of each financial asset. Therefore,
the Group's and the Company's management considers that its maximum exposure is reflected by the amount of
trade receivables and other financial assets less realisation allowance, recognised at the reporting date, if any.

Interest rate risk

As at 31 December 2015 and 2014 the Group had borrowings which were subject to variable rates related to
FURIBOR and created interest rate risk (Note 12).

As at 31 December 2015 the Group manages its interest rate risk by having entered into an interest rate swap
contract, in which the Group agrees to exchange, at specified intervals, the difference between fixed and variable rate
interest amounts calculated by reference to an agreed-upon notional principal amount {Note 14}. Since 17 July 2012,
the Group's loan tumed to be with fixed interest (hedged by interest rate swap), therefore the Group does not face
interest rate risk.

As at 31 December 2015 and 2014 the Group had material financial lease obligations with fixed interest rates;
therefore, they did not create interest rate risk.

Liquidity risk

The Group’s and Company’s policy is to maintain sufficient cash and cash equivalents or have available funding
through an adequate amount of commitied credit facilities to meet its commitments at a given date in accordance with
its strategic plans. The Group's liquidity (current assets / current liabilities) and quick {{current assets — inventory) /
current liabilities) ratios as at 31 December 2015 and 2014 were 1.37 and 1.12, respectively. The Company’s liquidity

{current assets / current liabilities) and quick {{current assets — inventory) / current liabilities) ratios as at 31
December 2015 and 2014 were 1.46 and 1.2 respectively.
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24 Financial assets and liahilities and risk management (cont’d}

The tables below summarise the maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at 31 December 2015 and 2014,

based on contractual undiscounted payments:

On Less than 3to12 1to5 More than
demand 3 months months years & years Total

Non-current interest bearing

borrowings and financial lease - 953 9,075 14,571 577 25,176

obligations
Derivative financial instruments

(net) - 118 731 549 - 1,398
Trade payables - 11,108 - - - 11,108
Other current liabilities - 137 - - - 137
Bal t 31

2onceasat 31 December - 12,316 9,806 15,120 577 37,819

On Less than 3to12 1105 More than
demand 3 months months years § years Total

Non-current interest bearing

borrowings and financial lease

obligations - 1,021 5,927 14,662 4,677 28,287
Derivative financial instruments

(net) - 138 187 470 5 800
Trade payables - 16,076 - - - 16,076
Other current fiabilities - 192 - - - 192
Balance as at 31 December

2014 - 17,427 6,114 15,132 4,682 43,355

The tables below summarise the maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities as at 31 December 2015 and
2014 based on contractual undiscounted paymenis:

Cn Less than 3to12 1tob More than
demand 3 months  months years 5 years Total
Other financial debts - 6,320 - - 6,320
Trade payables 11,054 - . - 11,054
Derivative financial instruments
{net) - 86 27 - 113
Other current liabilities 97 - - - 97
Balance as at 31 December
2015 11,151 6,406 27 - 17,584
On Less than 3012 1t05 More than
demand 3 months  months years 5 years Total
Other financial debts - 3,059 - - 3,059
Trade payables 15,910 - - - 15,910
Derivative financial instruments - 34 - - 34
Other current liabilities 60 - - - 60
Balance as at 31 December
2014 15,870 3,093 - - 19,063

Foreign exchange risk

Import and export activities expose the Group and the Company to foreign exchange risk. The Group and the
Company is not using financial instruments intended to control the risk of foreign exchange except for focusing on
trade in the euro; therefore, the Group and the Company is not exposed to significant foreign exchangs risk.
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Financial assets and liahilities and risk management (cont’d)

Fair value of financial instruments

The Group's and the Company’s principal financial instruments not carried at fair value are trade and other
receivables, trade and other payables, non-current and current borrowings and financial lease.

The foliowing methods and assumptions are used to estimate the fair value of each class of financial instruments:

(a) The carying amount of current trade and other accounts receivable, current accounts payable and current
borrowings approximates fair value;

(b} The fair value of non-current borrowings is based on the quoted market price for the same or similar issues or
on the current rates available for borrowings with the same maturity profile (level 1). The fair value of non-
current borrowings with variable interest rates approximates their carrying amounts.

Fair value of the Group's derivative financial instrument (interest rate swap} is defined as level 2, while fair value of
electricity forwards is defined as level 1 (Note 14). The interest rate swap is valued using discounted cash Hlow or
present value calculation method and pricing is based on market observable inputs. Electricity forward value is based
on market value,

There were no movements of financial instruments between the levels during 2015 and 2014.
Capital management

The Group's and Company’s capital consists of share capital in the amount of EUR 5.8 million, retained earnings and
legal reserve. The Company manages its business in such a way which allows aveiding significant increases in
working capital requirements. This is achieved primarily through the thorough management of payment dates for
electricity purchased from suppliers and sold to the clients. The Company aims to maintain the longest possible gap
between the dates when it receives the payment for the electricity sold and is obliged to pay for the electricity
purchased. In cases when the Company forecasts possible increase in the level of required working capital it always
has a possibility to take a credit line from the bank {this option has been discussed with the bank and it is possible to
open a required credit line within the term of 1 month). All the excessive cash is deposited in the bank accounts and
gains overnight interests pre-agreed with bank.

In addition, companies registered in Lithuania are obliged to upkeep their equity at not less than 50 % of share
capital, as imposed by the Law on Companies of the Republic of Lithuania. As at 31 December 2015 and 2014 the
Company was in line with this regulation. There were no other externally imposed capital requirements on the
Company and the Group.

Group companies registered in Latvia are obliged to keep its equity at no less than zero, as imposed by the Law on
Companies of the Republic of Latvia. The Group’s subsidiary SIA INTER RAQ Latvia does not comply with this
requirement as at 31 December 2015. The Group’s management does not expect any negative consequences to the
Group and believes that the losses will be covered from SIA INTER RAQ Latvia future profit from operations.

Group companies registered in Estonia are obliged to upkeep their equity at not less than 50 % of share capital, as
imposed by the Law on Companies of the Republic of Estonia. The Group’s subsidiary OU INTER RAO Eesti does
not comply with this requirement as at 31 December 2015. The Group’s management does not expect any negative
consequences to the Group and believes that the losses will be covered from QU INTER RAQ Eesti future profit from
operations.

Related party transactions

Parties are considered related when one party has the possibility to control the other one or have significant influence
over the other party in making financial and operating decisions. The related parties of the Group are as follows:

PJSC inter RAO (ultimate parent);

RAQ Nordic Oy {one of the shareholders);
UAB Scaent Baitic (one of the shareholders);
SIA INTER RAO Latvia (subsidiary};

OU INTER RAO Eesti (subsidiary};

Sp z 0.0. IRL Polska (subsidiary};

Vydmantai wind park, UAB (subsidiary);
UAB Alproka {joint venture});

Cther related parties include:

UAB Scaent Baltic Group companies (the same shareholder);
Other shargholders;

Management.
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2015
Group

PJSC Inter RAO

Oy RAC Nordic
UAB Scaent Baltic
UAB Alprcka

Other related parties

2014
Group

PJSC Inter RAO

Oy RAO Nordic
UAB Scaent Baltic
UAB Alproka

Other related parties

2015

Company

PJSC Inter RAD

Qy RAQ Nordic

UAB Scaent Baltic
UAB Alproka

SIA INTER RAQ Latvia

OU INTER RAO Eesti

Vydmantai wind park,
UAB

Other related parties

2014

Company

PJSC Inter RAO

Oy RAO Nordic

UAB Scaent Baltic
UAB Alproka

SIA INTER RAOQO Latvia

OU INTER RAO Eesti

Vydmantai wind park,
UAB

Cther related parties

b)
¢)

d)

d)

26 Related party transactions (cont’d)

Declared
Purchases Sales dividends/(received) Receivables Payables
112,800 1,148 - 99 10,341
391 - 5712 - 4,640
4 - 3,248 - 2,287
- - (68) - -
65 - _ 1,904 - 6
113,297 1,146 10,796 99 17,274
Declared
Purchases Sales dividends/(received) Receivables Payables
132,098 603 - 41 14,131
40 - 1,920 - 1,945
36 - 1,002 - 1,106
- - ( 130) - -
66 - 640 - 6
132,240 603 3,522 41 17,188
Declared Receivables and
Purchases Sales  dividends/(received) prepayments Payables
112,800 1,146 - 99 10,341
3n - 5,712 - 4,640
41 - 3,248 - 2,287
- - {(68) - -
- 5,207 - 2,209 -
- 441 - 633 -
- 19 - 2 .
65 - 1,804 - 6
113,297 6,813 10,796 2,943 17,274
Declared Receivables and
Purchases Sales dividends/(received) prepayments Payables
132,008 603 - 41 14,131
40 - 1,920 - 1,945
36 - 1,082 - 1,106
- - ( 130} - -
- 13,785 . 3,590 138
- 95 - 580 12
- 18 - 2 -
66 - 640 - 8
132,240 14,501 3,522 4,213 17,338
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Related party transactions (cont’d)

a) The Group and the Company performs electricity purchase and sales transactions with PJSC Inter RAO.

b) The main part of the payables to Oy RAQO Nordic in 2015 and 2014 consists of the loan (Note 12) provided
as a transfer from dividends payable (Note 27).

¢) The main part of the payables to UAB Scaent Baltic in 2015 and 2014 consists of the loan (Note 12)
provided as a transfer from dividends payable (Note 27).

d) In 2015 and 2014 the Company paid dividends to other sharsholders.

e) In 2014 the Company started to sefl the electricity to SIA INTER RAO Latvia through a power exchange,
sales turnover includes sales through power exchange and any price adjustments.

The Company has an agreement with PJSC Inter RAO, according to which the Company is obliged to buy certain
minimum amount of electricity in 2016.

Payables and receivables between related parties are non-interest bearing. Receivables and payables payment
terms between the related parties are up to 15 days, except for the dividends and loans, which are repaid in
accordance to the legal or contractual requirements, respectively.

Cutstanding balances at the year-end are unsecured and settlement occurs in cash, unless agreed otherwise. Thers
have been no guarantees provided or received for any related party receivable or payable and no allowance has
been made for the receivables from related parties by the Group and by the Company. The balances outstanding
with related parties of the Group and the Company were not overdue as at 31 December 2015 and 2014,

Management remuneration and other benefits

The Group’s management includes each of the Group companiss managing director, deputy director and board
members. Amounts of salaries and bonuses calculated during the years 2015 and 2014 for the management of the
Group were as follows: EUR 1,027 thousand and EUR 904 thousand, respectively.

The Company's management includes managing director, deputy director and board members. Amounts of salaries
and bonuses calculated during the years 2015 and 2014 for the management of the Company were as follows: EUR
866 thousand, and EUR 821 thousand, respectively.

No other guarantees were issued to the Group's and Company’s management and no other amounts were paid or
caiculated and no assets were disposed of.

Non-monetary transactions

In April 2015 the general shareholders meeting decided to pay EUR 11,200 thousand dividends to the shareholders.
EUR 8,960 thousand dividends payable were accounted for as loans payable to Oy RAC Nordic and UAB Scaent
Baitic, part of which was repaid during 2015 (Note 12).

In Aprit 2014 the general shareholders meeting decided o pay EUR 3,765 thousand dividends to the shareholders,

EUR 3,012 thousand dividends payable were accounted for as loans payable to Oy RAQ Nordic and UAB Scaent
Baltic {Note 12).

During 2015 and 2014 the following amounts of Group’s income tax were set off against other taxes: EUR 190
thousand and EUR 1,617 thousand, respectively.

Subsequent events

There were no subsequent events, which could materially influence the financial statements for the year ended as of
31 December 2015.
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B General Information

Reporting period
Year ended 31% December 2015

Company and its contact details

Company name AB INTER RAQ Lietuva (hereinafter - IRL or ,,the Company")
Company code 126119913

Legal form Public company (joint-stock company}

Date of registration 215t December 2002

Name of register of Legal Entities State Enterprise Centre of Registers

Registered office A.Tuméno str. 4, block B, LT-01109 Vilnius

Telephone number +370 5 242 11 21

Fax number +3705 242 11 22

E-mail info@interrao.lt

Internet address www.interrao.lt

Main activities of the Group of INTER RAQO Lietuva

The Group of INTER RAQ Lietuva (hereinafter - “the Group”) is an independent supplier of electricity and, as such, may
engage in various forms of electricity trading. Moreogver, the Group is also present in electricity generation operations,
as it owns a wind farm in Western Lithuania.

The Group is engaged in various forms of electricity trading: the purchase and sale of electricity under bilateral contracts
with other electricity suppliers, as well as on the power exchange; supply of electricity to end-users; provision of
balancing services for end-users and other wholesalers of electricity; sale and purchase of regulating and balancing
electricity for the transmission system operators; cross-border electricity trading.

The Group has permission to import and export electricity to and from Lithuania, it is engaged in the import of electricity
from Russia and, to a lesser extent, from Belarus, as well as in export to these countries.

The Group sells all of the electricity it cross-border from the third countries to the Lithuanian internal market on the
power exchange since, in accordance with respective regulations, all electricity cross-border delivered to the Lithuanian
internal electricity market has to be sold on the power exchange. Then the Group buys the electricity on the power
exchange in a volume corresponding to its contractual obligations with clients. Sale and purchase orders are submitted
for the same prices and trades are executed at the market price. Some portion of electricity is also sold through Nord
Pool AS in Lithuania to other market participants. Trades on the power exchange are executed at the market price.

The price of electricity sold under bilateral contacts is the market price, adjusted for variances depending on the
electricity trading or consumption pattern of the customer and contractual arrangements (e.g., fixed on annual or
monthly basis or agreed in daily delivery schedules).

Apart from importing electricity, the Group also purchases the electricity from other wholesalers of electricity in
{ithuania and Latvia under bilateral contracts based on various pricing arrangements, as well as on Nord Pool AS in
Lithuania, Latvia and Estonia.

The Group is also present in the electricity trading market in Poland, where it started its operations in 2014 and is
involved in buying and selling electricity on the Polish Power Exchange.
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The Group structure

As on 315 December 2015, the Group consisted of the Company and the following directly controlied subsidiaries and
joint venture (hereinafter - the Group):

Directly and

indirectly
held Equity as
effective at 31+
Company attributable  December Registration
Company code interest 2015 address Activity
INTER RAQ Eesti 00 - 11879805 100% (493) Vaikare-Karja Trade of
subsidiary 3/Sauna 2, Tallinn, electricity
Estonia

SIA INTER RAC Latvia - 40103268639 100% (609) Ropazu 10, LV 1039, Trade of
subsidiary Riga, Latvia electricity
IRL Polska Sp. z.c.0. - 0000436992 100% 1,996 Emilii Plater 53. Trade of
subsidiary Warsaw, Peland electricity
UAB  Alproka - joint 125281684 49 99% 258 Verkiy Str. 25C, Operations with
venture Vilnius, Lithuania real estate
Vydmantai Wind Park, 302666616 100% 12,314 A Tuméno Str. 4, Generation of

UAB - subsidiary

Vilnius, Lithuania

electricity

The following chart sets out the Group’ subsidiaries and interest in those subsidiaries, as well as the structure of the

Group:
AB INTER RAO Lietuva
i
IRL Polska l INTER RAO Eesti SIA INTER RAD UAB Alproka Vydmantai wind
Sp.z 0.0 o) Latvia park, UAB
(100% directiy-owned (100% directy-owned {100% directly-owned (43.99% owned joint {100% directly-owned
subsidiary} L subsidiary) subsidiary} venture) subsidiary)

The Group history and development

2002

INTERRAD 15 LIETUVA

The Company was incorporated as UAB Energijos realizacijos centras.
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2003

2004

2005

2006

2007

2008

2009

2010

2011

2012

2013

INTERRAOC & LIETUVA

The Company received its license as independent electricity supplier with permission to export
electricity.

The Company signed sale-purchase agreements with INTER RAO UES and Lietuvos energija AB.
The Company began electricity trading activities by exporting electricity to Russia and Belarus.
Permission to import electricity was granted to the Company.

The Company began importing electricity to Lithuania.

RAG Nordic OY, a wholly owned subsidiary of INTER RAO UES, acquired 18% of the Company’s share
capital from UAB VB rizikos kapitalo valdymas.

The Company acquired a 49.99% stake in UAB Alproka, a company engaged in real estate
development in the Lithuanian seaside resort of Palanga.

UAB Scaent Baltic acquired an 82% stake in the Company’s share capital from Scaent Holdings
Cooperatie UA and Bengtsbadd Forvaltning AB.

RAC Nordic OY increased its shareholding in the Company by acquiring a 33% stake from UAB
Scaent Baltic. The stake of RAO Nordic OY in the Company’s share capital reaches 51%, while the
stake of UAB Scaent Baltic decreases to 49%.

The Company signed electricity sale-purchase agreements with the Belarusian company,
Belenergo and the Latvian company, Latvenergo.

Cooperation regarding the sale of electricity with the largest electricity consumer in the Baltic
States, Orlen Lietuva, was established. Delivery was initiated in 2010,

The Company changed its name to UAB INTER RAQ Lietuva.

The Company established two wholly-owned subsidiaries, one in Latvia {SJA INTER RAQ Latvia) and
the second in Estonia (INTER RAOQ Eesti OU).

SIA INTER RAO Latvia received its license for electricity trading in Latvia.
SIA INTER RAQ Latvia begins electricity trading operations.
The Company begins trading activities in the Estonian area of NordPool Spot.

The Company begins operations in electricity generation from renewable energy sources by
acquiring the wind park in Vydmantai.

The Company signs an agreement with INTER RAC UES on potential export of electricity generated
in Baltiiskaya NPP under construction in Kaliningrad Oblast.

Decision on public offering and listing of the Company’s shares on the Warsaw Stock Exchange was
made.

Business entity {IRL POLSKA sp. z 0.0.} in Poland was established.
AB INTER RAD Lietuva shareholders decided to distribute 27 million Litas as dividends.

In July 2013, the Company has completed a merger of its two subsidiary companies UAB IRL Wind
and Vydmantai wind park, UAB. Subsidiary companies were reorganised by merging UAB IRL Wind,
which ceased its activities as a legal entity after the merger, into Vydmantai wind park, UAB which
continued its activities after the merger.
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On 4% December 2013, the statutory capital of subsidiary company of AB INTER RAO Lietuva in
Poland IRL Polska Sp.z 0.0. was increased from PLN 2,000 thousand to PLN 10,000 thousand.

2014 On 3" January 2014, the subsidiary company of AB INTER RAO Lietuva in Poland
IRL Polska Sp.z o0.0. was granted the license for trade in electricity in Poland. The term of the
license is from 9th January 2014 tilt 9th January 2024.

On 30% of April 2014, the General Annual Meeting of shareholders has adopted the decision to pay
dividends to the shareholders of the Company in the amount of 13 million Litas.

On 22" of May 2014, IRL Polska Sp. z 0.0. begins etectricity trading operations.

2015 After Lithuania joined the euro zone, AB INTER RAQ Lietuva shareholders fixed a nominal value of
one share (.29 EUR, share capital equal to 5.8 million EUR.

AB INTER RAQ Lietuva shareholders decided to distribute 11.2 million EUR as dividends.

Agreements with intermediaries of public trading in securities

Since 29t QOctober 2012 the Company and UAB FM| Orion Securities (code 122033915), A. Tuméno str. 4, LT-01109
Vilnius, have an agreement on accounting of the Company’s securities and services related to the accounting of
securities.

Data about securities traded on regulated market

The following securities of the Company are included into the Main List of Warsaw stock exchange {symbol: IRL):

Types of shares Number of Nominal value  Total nominal Issue Code
shares {in EUR) value (in EUR)
Ordinary registered shares 20,000,000 0.29 5,800,000 1.TO000128621

In December 2012, the initial public offering of the Company’s ordinary shares was completed on the Warsaw Stock
Exchange. The total oversubscription for the Company’s ordinary shares exceeded 26%. Given the ordinary share offer
price of PLN 24,17 the value of the offering exceeded PLN 96.7 million. The Company’s ordinary shares were included
into the Main list of the Warsaw Stock Exchange.

Securities of the Group‘s subsidiaries are not traded publicty.
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H.  Financial Information

The Company’s and the Group’s sales in 2015 reached EUR 157.5 million and EUR 186.7 million and they were lower by
16.6% and 11.3% respectively in comparison with the sales revenue in 2014.

Despite the lower sales revenue that the Company and the Group generated during the 2014 and 2015, which were
mainty caused by risk measures not to sign yearly contracts more than minimal capacity allowed on the boarders with
third countries, imptemented by the Company and the Group as a response to the potential risks arising from the possible
limitation of electricity transmission capacities from third countries down to 200 MW (Russia and Belarus) into the
Baltics!, which persisted throughout the entire years of 2014 and 2015, the Company and the Group managed to avoid
the potential losses and in 2015 generate industry normal 15.24% and 15.86% gross profitability respectively.

In 2015 total revenue declined due to lower amount of electricity traded in Lithuania and Latvia, which was facilitated
by the continuous trend of historically low electricity prices in the Nordpool system as well as by lower prices of
electricity sold. Despite the revenue decline the amounts of electricity traded in Estonia and especially in Poland were
higher. Sales margin during 2015 increased to 15.2% in the Company and 15.9% in the Group.

Electricity price in NordPoolSpot exchange

- 140 . e e PR
=
=
¥ 120 L
i :
60 - .‘
%_

o

40

2015.01.01 2015.03.01 2015.05.01 2015.07.01 201 5:09.()1 2015.11.01

e 21 0 TE Labvia Lithuania

During the period of 2015, the Company and the Group delivered electricity to all of its clients and fulfilled all of its
contractual obligations of electricity sales at prices, agreed upon in the contracts. The Company and the Group fulfilled
all of its contractual obligations to its Clients in 2015 without any delays and disturbances and remains as a trusted
counterparty and reliable electricity supplier.

Pue to the lower prices in the regional markets and lower amount of electricity traded, which was caused by the
persisting risk of possible limitation of electricity transmission capacities from third counties to Baltics, the Company’s
and the Group’s cost of sales were lower by 22.0% and 16.7%, comparing to the year 2014. As described above, the set
of risk management measures, implemented by the Company and the Group allowed to avoid potential loss making
situation in the 2015. Consequently, the Company’s and the Group’s gross profitability increased.

The Company’s and the Group’s EBITDA for the year 2015 was EUR 19.5 million and EUR 25.3 million. Company’s EBITDA
margin increased from 7.2% in 2014 to 12.4% in 2015 and the Group's from 8.45% in 2014 to 13.55% in 2015.

During 2015 the Company and the Group fulfilled all of its contractual obligations to the Clients, and despite the reduced
amount of electricity sold, its client’s base during the course of 2015 slightly increased: from 831 in 2014 to 839 in 2015.

1 Limitation of electricity transmission capacities from third counties to Baltics were caused by the agreement, signed between three Baltic
States transmission system operators as of 15 of March 2013. The transmission system operators de facto teminated this agreement
in the 4™ quarter of 2013, but there were no legal certainty that these fimitations couldn't have been introduced again throughout the entire
years of 2014 and 2015.
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The Company and the Group improved relationships with the largest electricity customers in the region, further
developed electricity trading operations in Poland. These events are positively reflected in the financial results of the
year 2015 and most tikely will be the important factor for income generation in the coming years.

Wind park located in Vydmantai, owned by the Group over a year generated and sold 68,55 GWh, which was 21.4% more
than in 2014, The increase in electricity production was mainly caused by the better wind conditions - the average wind
speed in the area in 2015 was 6.62 m/s - and technical upgrades in the transformer substation that were done in 2014,

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared according to the International Financial
Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union.

Key figures of IRL Group
Financial figures _ 2015 2014 2013
Sales (EUR thousand) 186,694 210,362 219,498
Gross profit (EUR thousand) 29,602 21,769 7,474
Gross profit margin (%) 15.86% 10.35% 3.41%
Operating profit (EUR thousand} 22,798 15,033 712
Operating profit margin (¥} 12.21% 7.15% 0.32%
EBITDA (EUR thousand) 25,301 17,774 3,193
EBITDA profit margin (%) 13.55% 8.45% 1.45%
Net profit (EUR thousand) 18,819 12,343 777
Net profit margin (%) 10.08% 5.87% 0.35%
Number of shares {thousand} 20,000 20,000 20,000
Earnings per share (EUR) (.94 0.62 0.04
Financial ratios 2015 2014 2013
Return on capital employed (%) 56% 41% 2%
Return on assets (%) 28% 19% 1%
Return on shareholders’ equity (%) 75% 69% 8%
Gearing ratio 0.96 1.35 3.08
Net financial debt to equity 0.17 0.72 2.62
Eguity to assets ratio 0.37 0.28 0.16
Current ratic 1.37 1.12 0.86
Rate of turnover of assets (%) 36% 3% 27%
Gross profit margin - Gross profit / Sales

Operating profit margin - Operating profit / Sales

EBITDA profit margin - EBITDA / Sales

Profit before taxes margin - Profit before taxes / Sales

Net profit margin - Net profit / Sales

Earnings per shares - Net profit / Number of shares

Return on capital employed - EBIT / (Total assets - Current liabilities)

Return on assets - Net profit / Total assets

Return on equity - Net profit / Total shareholders’ equity

Gearing ratio - Total debt / Total shareholders’ equity

Net financial debt to equity - (Financial borrowings - Cash and cash equivalents) / Total equity
Equity to assets ratio - Total equity / Total assets

Current ratio - Current assets / Current liabilities

Rate of turnover of assets - Total assets / Sales
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Revenues

The total consolidated Group's sales revenue in 2015 was equal to EUR 186.7 million, a 11.25% less than in 2014. Total
revenue declined due to lower amount of electricity traded in all Baltic countries, which was facilitated by relatively
low electricity prices in the Nordpool system as well as risk persisting due to the uncertainties associated with possible
technical limitation of interconnection links.

Sales revenues by operating segments, thous. EUR 2015 2014
Etectricity purchases and sales 180,732 205,432
Etectricity production and sales 5,962 4,930
Total 186,694 210,362

Group's revenue from sales of electricity in the 2015 amounted to EUR 180.7 million. Revenue from produced electricity
sales accounted for EUR 6 million, which is a 20.93% more than the sales a year ago. The increase in electricity
production was mainly caused by the better wind conditions in the area.

The tables below present data on the electricity trading activities of the Group for the 2014 and 2015 and the 4" quarter
of 2014 and 2015, with a breakdown by each country for the periods indicated (S - sale, P - purchase}.

For 2015 For 2014
b P S P
GWh GWh

Lithuania® 3,385 140 3,600 191
Latvia 248 248 532 269
Estonia 72 447 148 148
Russia 114 2,995 43 3,215
Belarus - 189 - 500
Poland 254 254 51 51
Total* 4,273 4,273 4,374 4,374

* Excluding equivalent trades on the power exchange
Differences between purchased and sold electricity total values is due to rounding

For the 4* quarter of 2015 For the 4* quarter of 2014
s P ] P
GWh GWh

Lithuania* 925 37 1,124 37
Latvia 48 48 150 40
Estonia 75 116 40 40
Russia 26 813 9 1,110
Belarus - 60 - 96
Poland 47 47 3 31
Total* 1,121 1,121 1,354 1,354

* Excluding equivalent trades on the power exchange

The average annual electricity price in 2015 in Lithuanian Nord Pool Spot zone was equal to 41.92 EUR/MWh compared
to 50.13 EUR/MWh in 2014, a 16.4% less than in 2014, The average weekly electricity price on the power exchange was
fluctuating between 31.19 and 73.34 EUR/MWh in 2015.
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Cost of sales

The Company’s and the Group’s cost of purchase of electricity in 2015 decreased by 22.04% and 16.79% respectively if
compared to 2014 and amounted to EUR 131.4 million and EUR 153.2 million. Cost of purchase of electricity constituted
98.45% and 97.54% of total cost of sales for the Company and for the Group respectively in 2015.

Transmission network service cost (i.e., input fee) for the Company and for the Group declined by 20.59% and amounted
to EUR 2.1 mitlion.

Gross profit in 2015 increased over the year by 36.76% and amounted to EUR 24 million for the Company and for the
Group increased by 35.98%, and amounted to EUR 29,6 million, if compared to EUR 17.6 million and EUR 21.8 million
respectively in 2014. Gross profit margin in 2015 not only stayed at the healthy levels but increased to 15.24% for the
Company and to 15.86% for the Group from 9.3% and 10.35% respectively in 2014.

General and administrative expenses

Total generat and administrative expenses of the Company and the Group in 2015 were higher than total general and
administrative expenses a year ago. in the Company it increased by 6.05% and amounted to EUR 4.7 mitlion and in the
Group it increased by 1.01% and was equal to EUR 6.8 mitlion. The most significant costs’ groups within the general and
administrative expenses in the Company and the Group were wages, depreciation and amortization, charity, electricity
selling expenses and consulting services expenses.

The employment related expenses (wages, salaries and social security) for the Company and for the Group over the year
increased by 7.57% and 8.47%. The increase was mainly caused by larger headcount: the total number of employees in
INTER RAQ Lietuva Group increased by 2, up to 44 in the end of 2015, The increase was associated with development of
the Group, increasing number of Clients and increasing electricity trading operations in Poland.

Support (charity) related expenses for the Company and the Group in 2015 were approximately equal to the expenses
for charity a year ago and amounted to EUR 1.15 million and EUR 1.17 million respectively. The Group constantly
supports various organizations and initiatives as a part of its business mission. Support, provided by the Group, is
concentrated on three main areas: communities, education and culture/ sports.

Electricity selling expenses for the Company decreased by 11.18% in 2015 and for the Group decreased by 51.89% and
accounted for EUR 0.29 million and EUR 0.33 million respectively. The expenses are payments to Nord Pool AS as well
as to the Polish Electricity Market - POLPX. The increase for the Group is mainly associated with payments to the latter.

Earnings

Profit from operations for the Company and for the Group for year 2015 were equal to EUR 19.3 million and EUR 22.8
million, compared to the profit from operations of EUR 13.1 million and EUR 15 million in 2014, Operating profit margin
for the Company and for the Group was equal to 12.25% and 12.21% compared to 6.95% and 7.15% a year ago.

Net result from financial and investing activities for the Company in 2015 was a 161.38% lower than a year ago and
amounted to EUR {-0.49) million. Net consolidated result from financial and investing activities for the Group increased
by 1.82% compared to 2014 and amounted to EUR (-0.86) million. In 2015 Company’s finance expenses mainly are
comprised of impairment of investments - EUR 0.46 miltion. Better overall result for the Group from financial activities
was mainly caused by year-on-year 8.81% lower interest expenses, which in 2015 totalled to EUR 0.9 million.

As a resuit, profit before tax for the Company and for the Group in 2015 increased by 43.57% and 52.93% and amounted
to EUR 18.8 million and EUR 22 million respectively.

The net profit of the Company and the Group in 2015 amounted to EUR 16.1 million and EUR 18.8 million respectively,
a 43.93% and 52.47% increase over a year ago.

The net profit margins for the Company and for the Group in 2015 increased and were equal to 10.23% and 10.08%
{compared to 5.93% and 5.87% year ago).
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Investments

During 2015 the Group has not made any significant investments. In total EUR 14 thousand were invested inte non-
current assets compared to EUR 82 thousand in 2014.

Balance sheet and cash flow

During January-December 2015 total assets of the Company increased by 10.04% and of the Group increased by 4.1%.
The most significant influence to the assets was caused by increase of cash and cash equivalents in the Company and in
the Group.

Total non-current assets of the Company decreased by 3.56% and of the Group decreased by 8.12%. The most significant
change in assets in the Group was related to depreciation of patents and licenses held by subsidy Vydmantai wind park.
Total non-current assets amounted to 27% of the total assets for the Company and to 46% of total assets for the Group.

buring the year, shareholders’ equity of the Company and of the Group increased by 28.02% and 39.55% and amounted
to 50% of the total liabilities of the Company and to 37% of the total assets of the Group. Increase in equity was caused
by the better operating activities of the Company and the Group for the year of 2015. Total dividends distributed in
2015 reached EUR 11.2 million.

At the end of December 2015, total amount of borrowings, including financial liabilities related to finance lease and
bank financing, amounted to EUR 6.3 million for the Company and EUR 24.1 million for the Group. Cash, cash equivalents
amounted to EUR 15.7 million for the Company and EUR 9.8 million for the Group.

Net cash flow from operating activities for the Company and for the Group in 2015 were by 14.76% and 16.52% higher
than a year ago and amounted to EUR 15.2 mitlion and EUR 20.5 million respectively (compared to EUR 13.2 million and
EUR 17.5 million a year ago).

During 2015 net cash flow from investing and financing activities amounted to negative EUR {-8.1) million for the
Company and negative EUR (-12.2) million for the Group {compared to negative EUR {-5.8) million for the Company and
to negative EUR (-10.1) million for the Group in 2014). Negative cash flow from financing activities is related to the
loans repaid and paid out dividends.

information about related party transactions

Parties are considered related when one party has the possibility to control the other one or have significant influence
over the other party in making financial and operating decisions. The related parties of the Group are as follows:

—  PJSC Inter RAC {ultimate parent};
-~ RAO Nordic Oy {one of the shareholders);
~  UAB Scaent Baltic {one of the shareholders);
- SIA INTER RAQ Latvia (subsidiary);
—  INTER RAO Eesti O (subsidiary};
~  IRL Polska Sp z o.0. (subsidiary);
—  Vydmantai wind park, UAB {subsidiary);
— UAB Alproka {joint venture});
Other related parties include:
-~ UAB Scaent Baltic Group companies {the same sharehoider);
-~ Other shareholders;
- Management.

Detailed information about related party transactions is provided in Note 26 of INTER RAO Lietuva, AB Financial
Statements for the year ended 315 December 2015.

Other material information

Ne other material information occurred after the balance sheet date.
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Recent events

1 January 2015 was the day of introduction of EUR in the Republic of Lithuania, therefore as at this day the functional
currency of the Company was changed accordingly. The exchange rate of LTL 3.45280 for 1 EUR which was irrevocably
set by the Council of Europe was applied while converting LTL to EUR.

No other material subsequent events occurred after the balance sheet date.
Research and development activities

There were no major research and development projects undertaken during 2015, except the on-going development
and improvement of the Group provided services.

Risk management
The main risk factors associated with the activities of the Company are as follows:

—  Changes in the regulatory environment,

- Changes in the price of electricity traded.

- Increase in price of imported electricity.

— Decrease in electricity demand.

- Failure to build or delay in building interconnections between electricity grids.
-~ Discontinuation or unfavourable changes in renewable energy support schemes.
- Decrease in volume of electricity generated by the wind park.

-~ Increased competition among independent electricity suppliers.

—  Changes in currency exchange rates.

As of 315t December 2015 the total amount of borrowings of the Group amounted to EUR 24.1 million compared to EUR
24.2 million as of 31% December 2014.

As at 31 December 2015, the Group’s fully owned subsidiary (Vydmantai wind park, UAB) had an interest rate swap
agreement for purpose of future cash flow hedge. On 29t June 2012 the Group's company (IRL Wind, UAB) has concluded
interest rate swap agreement for the period from 17t July 2012 to 17 October 2020. The Group's company pays a fixed
interest rate at 1.65% and receives a floating interest rate at 6-month EURIBOR on a notional amount set in the
agreement. The notional amount of the transaction at the inception moment was EUR 12,500 thousand and is amortized
over the period of validity of the derivative. After the reorganization of UAB IRl Wind and Vydmantai wind park, UAB
was completed on 11t July 2013, all the assets and undertakings, including the interest rate swap agreement, of UAB
IRL Wind were taken over by Vydmantai wind park, UAB. The notional amount of the transaction after reorganization
was increased to EUR 23.3 million.

In 2015 the Group’s fully owned subsidiary INTER RAQ Eesti 00 signed electricity derivative agreements for the purposes
of future cash flow hedge. The derivative agreements are for 2016, 2017, 2018 and 2019 years.

The Group’s and the Company’s activities expose it to the following financial risks: market risk {including foreign
exchange risk, and cash flow and interest rate risk), credit risk, liquidity risk. The Group’s policy for treasury
management focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimize potential adverse effects of the
financial performance of the Group.

The Company’s financial risk management is carried out by the Company under policies approved by the Management
Board. This unit identifies and evaluates financial risks in close co-operation with the Group’s operating units. The
Management Board provides written principles for overall risk management, as well as written policies covering specific
areas, such as foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk, credit risk and investing excess liquidity.

The Group’s electricity trading is partially executed based on orders submitted by a team of traders on a daily basis in
response to market conditions, upon consideration of the Group’s contractual obligations and market demand,
Electricity trading operations are executed using software provided by the electricity exchange (Nord Pool 5pot AS)
ptatform or platforms of clients/suppliers. In order to mitigate risks associated with electricity trading, the Group has
introduced respective policies to supervise its traders’ activity. Namely, each order for electricity purchase or sale is
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made by two employees: one employee inputs trading parameters, whereas the other (usually the commercial director)
reviews and confirms them.

Apart from internat risk management procedures, trades made by the Group are checked by its counterparties, the
power exchange and transmission system operators, Electricity trades made through Nord Pool Spot AS are checked by
the power exchange itself for arithmetical accuracy and systematic errors, as well as for unusual activities. Furthermore,
each day the Group is obliged to present to the transmission system operator its ptan for deliveries of electricity for the
following day. The transmission system operator checks whether the Group is able to deliver the planned volume of
electricity and, if required, checks the availability of balancing services to be provided to the Group. Moreover, each
day the Group is obliged to deliver to the Lithuanian transmission systern operator plans for import and export of
electricity from/to Russia or Belarus.

Regarding the management of credit risk, the Group is engaged in credit valuation and constant monitoring of its Clients,
In such activities, the Group uses internally designed software which atlows for the collection of information from Clients
and prospective Clients, which is needed to evaluate Client’s credit risk.

The Company implemented a process of internal controls. The process of the Company’s internat controls implies control
of business processes related to provision of electricity purchase and sale, and revenue assurance (customers’
settlements and accounting, development and management of services, services provision), performance of T systems
{customer care and billing, infrastructure, network information, financial accounting, salary accounting, networks’
interconnection} and the process of preparation of financial reports.

Plans and forecasts

The Company does not provide any specific plans or forecasts. The Group is engaged in electricity trading and plans
expansion into other countries. The Group operates a wind park located in Vydmantai and plans to further develop
activities in the renewable energy sector.

53

INTERRAG 22 LIETUVA




AB INTER RAO LIETUVA, Company code 126119913, A.Tuméno str. 4, Vilnius, Lithuania
CONSOLIDATED ANNUAL REPORT

FOR THE 12 MONTH PERIOD ENDED 315 December 2015

{all amounts are in EUR thousand unless otherwise stated)

i,  Information about Share Capital and Shareholders

Share Capitai

in the end of 2015 the share capital of the Company amounts to EUR 5,800,000 and consisted of 20,000,000 ordinary
registered shares with a naminal value EUR 0.29 each. On 20% July 2012, the General Meeting adopted a resolution to
increase the share capital from LTL 1,000,000 to LTL 20,000,000, and to divide the share capital into 20,000,000 ordinary
registered shares with a nominal value of LTL 1 each. Such an increase in share capital was made by converting 1,000
ordinary registered shares of the Company with a nominal value of LTL 1,000 into 1,000,000 ordinary registered shares
with a nominal value of LTL 1 each, and by issuing 19,000,000 new ordinary registered shares of the Company from the
retained earnings of the Company. After Lithuania joined the euro zone, on 30 April 2015 AB INTER RAO Lietuva
shareholders decided to fix a nominal value of one share 0.29 EUR and share capital equal to 5.8 million EUR. Ordinary
registered shares of the Company (ISIN code LT0000128621) are listed on the Main List of Warsaw Stock Exchange
(symbol; IRL}.

Shareholders

As of 315t December 2015 the Company had 3 shareholders whose shares were accounted in Lithuanian securities
depository system. The shares of remaining shareholders were accounted in Polish securities depository system. Due to
prevailing private information protection laws in Poland, Polish National Depository for Securities is not able to provide
the Company with information about number of Company’s shareholders whose shares are accounted in Polish securities
depository system.

Shareholders, holding more than 5% of the share capital and votes, as of 31* December 2015:

Name of shareholder Number of ordinary Share of the Share of votes given
registered shares share by the shares owned
owned by the capital, % by the right of
shareholder ownership, %
RAQ Nordic OY * 10,200,000 51.0 51.0
UAB Scaent Baltic * 5,800,000 29.0 29.0
Other shareholders 4,000,000 0.0 20.0
Total 20,000,000 100.00 100.00

As of 315 December 2015, 51% of the outstanding share capital of INTER RAO Lietuva, AB is held directly by RAO Nordic
OY, a company organized and existing under the laws of the Republic of Finland, registration number 1784937-7, with
its registered office at Tammasaarenkatu 1, FIN-00180, Helsinki, the Republic of Fintand. RAO Nordic OY is a wholly-
owned subsidiary of PJSC inter RAG, a company incorporated under Russian law, listed on MICEX-RTS under ticker ‘IRAQ’.
PJSC Inter RAD is a diversified energy holding managing assets in Russia, several countries of the CIS and the EU. its
operations comprise electric power and heat generation, internationat power trading and electric industry engineering.

As of 31% December 2015, 29% of the outstanding share capital of the Company is held directly by UAB Scaent Baltic, a
company organized and existing under the laws of the Republic of Lithuania, registration number 300661378, with its
registered office at Jogailos str. 9, LT-01116, Vilnius, the Republic of Lithuania.

As of 31= December 2015, free float represents 20% of the cutstanding share capital.

54

INTERRAC 7 LIETUVA



AB INTER RAO LIETUVA, Company code 1261189813, A.Tuméno str. 4, Vilnius, Lithuania

CONSOLIDATED ANNUAL REPORT

FOR THE 12 MONTH PERIOD ENDED 315 December 2015
{all amounts are in EUR thousand unless otherwise stated)

* On 7™ January 2014, the Company made Announcement of the acquisition of block of voting right in the Company. As of 31
December 2015, the block of voting rights is held by:

Specification of voting rights held by Jonas Garbaravicius as of 31* December 2015

of AB INTER RAQ Lietuva
(ISIN code LTOD00128621)

Number of Nurnber of Number of voting rights {%)
shares (units} voting rights {units)
Directly Directly Indirectly Directly Indirectly
Ordinary registered shares 64,860 64,860 6,051,359 0.32 30.26

Specification of voting rights indirectly held by Jonas Garbaravi¢ius as of 31 December 2015

Name and other data about the person

The number of shares and voting rights held as of

31 December 2015
Number of Number of
Number of Lo N
shares (units} voting rights voting rights
{units} (%)
directly directly directly

Voting rights held according to the Art 24 Part 1 {tem 6 of the Law on Securities of the Republic of Lithuania {voting rights held
by the company controlled by Jonas Garbaravicius)

JG Investment Management UAB, code 303049386, address A. Tuméno str.

4-38, Vilnius, the Repubtic of Lithuania 141,389 141,389 0.7%
UAB | East Europe Investment Group®, code 300606588, address A,

Tuméno str. 4, Vilnius, the Republic of Lithuania 22,856 22,856 0.11

managers of the issuer)

Voting rights held according to the Art 24 Part 2 of the Law on Securities of the Republic of Lithuania {voting rights held by other

Vilma Juraté Balciuniene (spouse of the CEO of the issuer)

40,000

40,000

0.2

Vidas Cebatariunas {management board member of the issuer)

37,114

47,114

0.24

Voting rights held according to the Art 24 Part 1 item 6 of the Law on Securities of the Republic of Lithuania (voting rights held
by the company indirectly controlled by Garbaravicius family)

Republic of Lithuania

UAB Scaent Baltic, code 300661378, address Jogailos str. 9, Vilnius, the

5,800,000

5,800,000

29

In addition, according to Art 24 Part 1 ltem 2 of the Law on Securities of the Republic of Lithuania (agreement on implementation of

long term management policy of the issuer), the persons indicated above indirectly hold voting rights directly held of RAQ Nordic Qy,
code 1784937-7, address Tammasaarenkatu 1, FIN-00180, Helsinki, the Republic of Finland, which concluded an agreement on
impiementation of long term management policy of the issuer with UAB Scaent Baltic (hereinafter Shareholders’ agreement):
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The number of shares and voting rights held as of 31%
Name and other data about the person December 2015
Number of Number of
Number of o o
shares {units) voting rights voting rights
(units) %)
directly directly directly
RAQ Nordic Oy, code 1784937-7, address Tammasaarenkatu 1, FIN-
00180, Helsinki, the Republic of Finland 10,200,000 10,200,000 51

Treasury shares

During the financial year of 2015, the Company has not purchased any treasury stock, As of 31%* December 2015, the
Company does not hold any treasury stocks.

Acquisition of treasury shares

For an adoption of a resolution on the acquisition of its own shares, a quatified % majority of votes of shareholders
participating at the General Meeting is required. Under Lithuanian law, the Company may acquire its own shares if all
of the following conditions are met: (i) the acquisition of its own shares occurs within a specified period (no longer than
eighteen months) after the adoption of a resolution by the General Meeting which specifies the conditions, purpose and
terms for the acquisition of its own shares, including the maximum number of shares to be acquired, the manner in
which these shares may be acquired and the price range within which the shares may be acquired; (ii) the total nominal
value of the shares redeemed or taken as collateral does not exceed one-tenth of the share capital; and (iii} after the
acquisition of its own shares, the Company’s equity does not fall below the sum of the paid share capital, mandatory
reserve and the reserve for acquisition of own shares; (iv) consideration of redeemed shares are paid from the reserve
for acquisition of its own shares which was formed by the Company; {v) acquired shares are fully paid; (vi) acquisition
of its own shares by the Company ensures equal possibilities for all shareholders to sell their held shares to the Company.
Shares that were acquired infringing the above listed requirements (i}-{iv) must be sold within twelve months from the
acquisition of these shares. If the shares are not sold during this period, then the corresponding portion of the share
capital of the Company must be annulled. Upon acquisition of its own shares, the Company has no right to exercise
property and non-property rights conferred by such shares.

Shareholders® rights

None of the shareholders of the Company have any special controlling rights. Rights of all shareholders are equal. One
ordinary registered share of the Company gives one vote in the General Meeting of Shareholders.

Shareholders’ agreements

I accordance with the Shareholders’ Agreement (the agreement between RAO Nordic OY and UAB Scaent Baltic),
neither RAQ Nordic OY, nor UAB Scaent Baltic had the right to sell or otherwise transfer its ordinary shares in the
Company or any part thereof to any third party or create any other third party rights to the Shares or any part thereof,
until 315t Pecember 2015, except upon receiving the prior written consent of RAD Nordic OY and UAB Scaent Baltic.

In addition, pursuant to the lock-up agreement, entered into between RAO Nordic OY and UAB Scaent Baltic and UAB
FM] ORION Securities, RAQ Nordic QY and UAB Scaent Baltic have agreed to certain restrictions including, but not limited
to: (i) an undertaking not to offer, sell, transfer, vote in favour of, or otherwise dispose of, or publicly announce the
issuance, offering, sale or disposal of any ordinary shares; and (ii) an undertaking not to enter into any swap or other
transaction that transfers, in whole or in part, the economic consequences of ownership of Shares or options, without
the prior written consent of UAB FM| ORION Securities for a period of a year following the admission and introduction
of Shares to trading an Warsaw Stock Exchange, which was executed on 18" December 2012. The lock-up period set in
this agreement has ended on 18" December 2013.
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Information about trading in the Company’s securities

Information about trading in the Company's shares on Warsaw stock exchange in 2012-2015;

Year Currency Opening price Highest price  Lowest price  Last price  Average price

2012 PLN 25.75 26.64 25.75
2013 PLN 26.93 31.3 21.01
2014 PLN 23.97 24.00 14.50
2015 PLN 19.39 19.85 15.00

16.64 26.23
23.92 27.12
19.69 19.32
18.60 17.56

Turnover

2,862,401
43,529,719

15,620,599

8,650,069

The Company has market making agreement with UAB FM] ORION Securities. On 28 December 2015, additional agreement
between UAB FM| ORION Securities and WSE came into force in order to satisfy new requirements of Ligquidity Support

Programme which participant the Company is.

IRL market capitalization as of 31 December 2015 reached PLN 372 million.
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According to the shareholders’ agreement, RAO Nordic OY and UAB Scaent Baltic shall cause their respective nominees
in the Supervisory Board and Management Board to support the distribution of no less than 70% of the relevant year net

profit as dividends to sharehotders.

RAOQ Nordic OY and UAB Scaent Battic shall vote their ordinary shares at the General Meeting to ensure such distribution
of the net profit, unless the Management Board, in acting in the best interests of the Company by approving the annual
investment program, decides that the Company should make investments with the relevant year's net profit.

Dividend per share declared by the Company for the financial years ended 31 December 2014, 2013 and 2012 was equal

to EUR 0.56, EUR 0.19 and EUR 0.39 respectively.

Dividends for 2014, 2013 and 2012 amounted to EUR 11.2Z million, EUR 3.77 million, EUR 7.82 million respectively.
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2014 2013 2012

Net profit, mEUR 11.20 1.16 16.8
Dividends declared, mEUR 1.2 3.77 7.82
Dividend pay-out ratic 100% 325% 46%

On 20t July 2012 RAQ Nordic QY and UAB Scaent Baltic adopted resolution on the increase of the share capital from the
Company's own funds from LTL 1,000,000 to LTL 20,000,000. As a consequence, the net profit for distribution for the
financial year ending 31% December 2012, was reduced by the amount of the share capital increase. After Lithuania
joined the euro zone in 2015, AB INTER RAO Lietuva shareholders fixed a nominal value of one share 0.29 EUR, share
capital equal to 5.8 million EUR,
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IV. Corporate Governance

The management bodies of the Company are as follows: General Shareholders Meeting, a collegial management body -
Supervisory council, a collegial management body - Board, and single-person management body - Chief Executive
Officer.

In addition to main governing bodies, the Company has an audit committee formed.

Members of Supervisory council

Anton Badenkov

Chairman of the Supervisory Council (term: 2012.10.22 -
2016.10.22)

Advisor to the Chairman of the Board at PJSC inter RAD

Education:
Lomonosov Moscow State University

Career:

212 - present: Chairman of the Supervisory Council at INTER RAQ Lietuva

2011 - present; Member of the Board at Third Generating Company of the Wholesate Electricity Market
2010 - present; Member of the Board at Electric Networks of Armenia

Natalia Ananieva
Member of the Supervisory Council at INTER RAQ Lietuva

Education:
Higher education degree in accounting and audit at Moscow State University of Applied Biotechnology

Career over the last five years:

2011 - present: Head of Internal Audit, Controtling and Risk Management Block, Head of Operational
Controlling and Audit Support Department, Head of Foreign Assets Audit Department, Head of Foreign
Assets Audit Directorate at inter RAQ

2010 - 2011: Head of Internal Audit Section, Moscow Branch of OAQ OGK-1

2005 - 2010: Head of Internal Audit Department, Head of Financial Controlling and Audit Directorate,
Senior Manager of Internal Audit Department at INTER RAO UES
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Nerijus Dagilis
Member of the Supervisory Councit (term: 2013.04.30 -~ 2016.10.22)
Entrepreneur

Education;

Master degree at the G. Soros foundation program at University of Essex, Great Britain and Budapest,
Hungary, Central European University

BA in Business and Administration at Vytautas Magnus University, Kaunas, Lithuania, and Fordham
University, NY, Creighton University, NE, USA

Career:

2010 - 2012: Chairman of the Board at Charter Jets
2005 - 2010: Chairman of the Board at Kitron ASA
2001 - 2010; Chairman of the Board at Snaige

2000 - 2010: Chairman of the Board at Hermis Capital

PBmitrijus Dutovas
Member of the Supervisory Council (term: 2013.04.30 - 2016,10,22)
Head of Institutional Clients at Crion Securities

Education:
Master degree at the Faculty of Economics, Vilnius University

Career:

2012 - present: Head of Institutional Clients at Orion Securities

2008-2012; financial broker at Orion Securities

2007 - 2008: Head of Capital Markets at “MP investment bank” Baltic Branch

Jonas Garbaravicius
Member of the Supervisory Council (term: 2012.10.22 - 2016.10.22)
Partner at Rigel Capital Partners

Education:
Vytautas Magnus University

Career:

2015 - present: Partner at Rigel Capital Partners

2013 - 2015: Partner at CEE Resources & Investments LLP

2012 - present: Board member at Vilnius City Opera

2012 - present: Member of the Supervisory Board at INTER RAO Lietuva

2011 - present; Member of the Management Board at Inter Green Renewables and Trading
2007 - 2013: Chairman of the Board at Scaent Baltic

2007 - 2012: Member of the Board at INTER RAQ Lietuva

2009 - 2011: Chairman of the Board at Scaent Holdings Cooperatie

2008 - 2009: Chairman of the Board at 5C Baltic Media (at the time called Express Media)
2008 - 2009: Member of the Board at Onergo
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Michail Konstantinov
Member of the Supervisory Councit (term: 2012.10.22 - 2016.10.22)
Member of the Board at INTER RAO Energy Asset

Education:
PhD in Law awarded by Moscow Academy of Economics and Law
Tver Institute of Ecology and Law

Moscow International University of Environment and Politics

Career:

2012 - present: Member of the Supervisory Council at INTER RAQ Lietuva

2012 - present: Director for Corporate Governance of the Corporate and Property relations Unit at Inter
RAO

2012 - present: Member of the Board at INTER RAO Energy Asset

2012 - present: Member of the Board at INTER RAO Energy

2012 - present: Member of the Board at Dominanta Energy

2012 - present: Member of the Board at Dominanta Management

2012 - present: Member of the Board at Saint Petersburg Energy Sales Company

2010 - 2012: Head of the Directorate for Law at Sobinbank

2008 - 2010: Deputy Manager of the Directorate at Federal Bailiff Service of the Russian Federation

Alexander Pakhomov

Member of the Supervisory Council (term: 2012.10.22 - 2016.10.22)
Member of the Management Board, Head of the Legal Affairs Unit at
PJSC inter RAO

[

Education:
Academy of Public Administration under the President of the Russian Federation
Military University of the Ministry of Defense of the Russian Federation

Career:

2012 - present: Member of the Supervisory Council at INTER RAQ Lietuva

2011 - present: Member of the Board of Directors at RazTES

2011: Member of the Board of Directors at LLC INTER RAQ Electrogeneration

2008 - 2011: Director of the Department of Law at INTER RAC UES

2007 - 2008: member of RAO UES of Russia project team providing tax support for electric power industry
reform
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Members of the Board

Karina Tsurkan

Chairman of the Board (term: 2013.04.08 -2017.04.08)

Member of the Management Board, Head of the Trading Unit of PJSC
Inter RAD

Education:
Bachelor’s degree at the International independent University of Moldova
MBA degree at the University Consortium of Spain (IUP)

Career:

2012 - present: Chairman of the Board at INTER RAO Lietuva

2012 - present: Member of the Management Board, Head of the Trading Unit at Inter RAQ

2011 - 2012; Head of the Geographic Division "Europe™ at INTER RAQ UES

2010 - 2011: Head of the Geographic Division "Moldova, Ukraine, Romania” at INTER RAQ UES

2009 - 2010: Head of the Department of Management and Development, the Geographic Division “Europe” at
INTER RAO UES

2008: Head of the Department of Foreign Economic Activity in East and West Europe, INTER RAOQ UES

linar Mirsivapov

Member of the Board {term: 2013.04.08 -2017.04.08)
Member of the Management Board, Head of the Strategy and
Investment Unit of PJSC inter RAD

Education:

Ph.D.

Moscow State Institute of International Relations
Almetyevsk State Qil Institute

Kutafin Moscow State Law Academy

Career:

2012 - present: Member of the Board at INTER RAQ Lietuva

2010 - present: Head of the Strategy and Investment Unit at INTER RAQ

2009 - present: Advisor to CEQ at Inter RAQ

2009 - 2010; Associated Head of the Department of Law and Corporate Affairs at Rosatom

2008 - 2009: Associated Head of the Department of Corporate Governance and Development at Rosatom
2007 - 2008: Head of the Administrative Support Department at Atomenergoprom
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Dmitrij Palunin

Member of the Board (term: 2013.04.08 -2017.04.08)

Member of the Management Board, Financial Director (CFQ) at PJSC
Inter RAQ

Education:
Moscow State Aviation institute
Academy of National Economy, Graduate School of International Business

Career:

Presently: Member of the Management Board, Financial Director (CFO) at inter RAO

2012 - present: Member of the Board, INTER RAO Lietuva

2007 - 2009: Associated Financial Director (CFO), Head of the Department of Corporate Finance at INTER RAO
UES

2006 - 2007: Head of the Treasury Department at INTER RAO UES

2005 - 2006: Associated Head of the Department of Economics and Finance at INTER RAO UES

Giedrius BalCiGnas
Member of the Board (term: 2013.04.08 -2017,04.08)
Director General {CEQ) at INTER RAQ Lietuva

Career:

2012 - present: Member of the Board at INTER RAO Lietuva

2010 - present: Member of the Management Board at INTER RAQ Eesti Ol

2006 - present: Chairman of the Management Board at Alproka

2003 - present: Director General (CEQ} at INTER RAQ Lietuva

2011; Member of the Management Board at Véjy spektras (Vydmantai Wind Park)

Vidas Cebatarilinas
Member of the Board (term: 2013.04.08 -2017.04.08)
Director of Commerce of AB INTER RAO Lietuva

Education;
Master of Economic Analysis and Planning awarded by Vilnius University

Career:

2012 - present: Member of the Management Board at IRL Polska

2012 - present: Chairman of the Management Board at INTER RAO Latvia

2010 - present: Member of the Management Board at INTER RAQ Eesti

2010 - 2013: Member of the Management Board at Scaent Baltic

2007 - present: Member of the Management Board at INTER RAQ Lietuva

2005 - present: Director of Commerce at INTER RAO Lietuva

2011: Member of the Management Board at Véjy spektras (Vydmantai Wind Park)

2009 - 2011: Member of the Management Board at 5C Baltic Media (at the time called Express Media)
2008 - 2010: Member of the Management Board at UAB Versus aureus leidykia
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CEO
The general director (CEQ) of the Company is Giedrius Baléinas. Term in the position: 2003.05.21 - unlimited
Chief accountant

Chief accountant of the Company is Edita Vagoniené. Term in the position: 2012.10.01 - unlimited

Audit committee
On 12 December 2013 the Company has formed an audit committee. The term of committee will end on 2016.10,22.

The members of the audit committee are the following: Mr Nerijus Dagilis, Mr Mikhail Konstantinov and Mr Aleksandr
Pakhomov.

Holdings in the Company by members of governing bodies, administration, and audit committee

Table below presents information about number of shares held in the Company by members of governing bodies,
adminisfration, and audit committee:

Name, surname Directly held shares indirectly held shares Total
No.of % of total No. of % of total No. of % of total
shares equity shares equity shares equity

Anton Badenkov

Natalia Ananieva

Nerijus Dagilis

Dmitrijus Dutovas

Jonas GarbaraviCius* 64,860 0.32% 6,051,359 30.26% 6,116,219 30.58%

Michail Konstantinov

Alexander Pakhomov

Karina Tsurkan

tlnar Mirsiyapov

Dmitrij Palunin

Giedrius Balcitinas 0.00% 40,000 0.2% 40,000 0.2% :

Vidas Cebataritinas 47,114 0.24% 0.00% 47,114 0.24% -

Giedrius Bal&itnas,

Administrati CEO 0.60% 40,000 0.2% 40,000 0.2%
on £dita Vagoniene,

chief accountant

Nerijus Dagilis

Michail Konstantinov

Alexander Pakhomov

* - more specific information about shares held by Jonas Garbaravitius can be found on the section “information about Share Capital

and Shareholders” of this report.

Supervisory
board

Management
board -

Audit
Committee
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Remuneration of the members of the governing bodies, CEO and Chief accountant of the Company

During 2015 in total EUR 0.48 million was paid as salaries for the members of governing bodies and administration.
Except for salaries, there have been no other sums transferred by the Company to the members of governing bodies and
administration. More detailed information regarding remuneration is presented in the table below.

Salaries, EUR

All members of the Supervisory Board collectively 123,437
Per member of the Supervisory Board on average 17,634
All members of the Board collectively 311,823
Per member of the Board on average 62,365
All members of administration {CEO and chief accountant) 219,802
Per member of administration 109,901

Important agreements

The Company has not entered into any material contracts which would come into validity, change, or expire after the
change in the control of the Company.

The Company has not entered into any agreements with the members of the governing bodies, committees or employees
regarding compensation in case members or employees resign, are fired without reasonable cause or their employment
ceases due to change in control of the Company.

Harmful transactions

During the reporting period there have been no any transactions performed on behalf of the Company which were
harmful (not complying with the goals of the Company, usual market practices, conflicting with the interests of
shareholders etc.), had or could have in the future any negative influence for the activities or financial results of the
Company.

According to the knowledge of the Company, during the reporting period there have been no any transactions made by
the management, controlling shareholders or any other parties related to the Company which resulted in the private -
corporate conflicts of interest.

Auditors

The Consolidated Financial Statements presented in the annual report were audited by UAB Ernst & Young Baltic {license
No. 001335), with its seat at Subaciaus 7, LT-01127 Vilnius, Lithuania. Ms Asta Streimikiené (auditor license No. 000382)
is the signatory of the independent auditors’ report on the Consolidated Financial Statements, a member of the
Lithuanian Chamber of Auditors.

Social Responsibility

The Group constantly supports varicus organizations and initfatives as a part of its business mission. For the financial
years ended 315 December 2015, 2014 and 2013 the Group spent EUR 1.17, EUR 1.15 million and EUR 0.9 million,
respectively, on charity and other support. These costs represent Group’s corporate values and culture to support and
contribute to the overall social welfare. Suppert, provided by the Group, is concentrated on three areas: communities,
education and culture, sports. While contributing to the social communities the Group donates to orphanages, hospitals,
churches and various other charity and support organizations. When sponsoring culture and education spheres, the
Group supports universities, schools, theatres, orchestras and various other organizations and events. Sports sponsorship
started at the very beginning of the company’s activities, the main attention is paid to basketball, soccer, car races,
tennis and various other sports organizations and events.

Environment matters

The Group uses the most innovative means and the most modern technological processes that meet ecological standards,
In addition, the Group owns wind park located in Vydmantai, which produces eco-friendly electricity.
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V. Personnel

The table below presents the Company’s data on the headcount of employees divided into categories, in the periods
indicated.

As of 31" December
2015 2014
Management 8 8
Sales Managers, including Traders 8 8
PR £ Marketing Staff 2 2
Project managers 1 1
Technical staff 1 1
Office Staff 7 6
Total 27 26

The table below presents the Company’s data on the employee related expenses divided into employee categories, for
the period indicated.

As of 31% December 2015

Headcount Expenses, EUR million
Management 8 0.955
Sales Managers, including Traders 8 0.182
PR & Marketing Staff 2 0.063
Project managers 1 0.017
Technical staff 1 0.015
Office Staff 7 0.190
Tatal 27 1.422

On 31% December 2015 27 employees were employed in the Company. Company’s personnel consisted of 8 managers
and 19 specialists. Average annual employment expenses per employee in 2015 amounted to EUR 119 thousand for
managers and EUR 25 thousand for specialists.
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The table below presents the Group’s data on the headcount of employees divided into categories, in the periods
indicated.

As of 31* December
2015 2014

Management 8 8
Sales Managers, including Traders 16 15
PR & Marketing Staff 2

Project managers 4 4
Technical staff 2 2
Office Staff 12 i3
Total 44 42

The table below presents the Group’s data on the employee related expenses divided into employee categories, for the
period indicated.

As of 31* December 2015

Headcount Expenses, EUR million
Management 8 0.955
Sates Managers, including Traders 16 0.423
PR & Marketing Staff Z 0.063
Project managers 4 0.056
Technical staff 2 0.026
Office Staff 12 0.258
Total 44 1,781

Once grouped by broad categories, on 31% December 2015 Group’s personnei consisted of 8 managers and 36 specialists.
Average employment expenses per employee in 2015 amounted to EUR 119 thousand for managers and EUR 23 thousand
for specialists.

As of 31% December 2015, 34 of the Group's employees were employed in Lithuania, 4 were employed in Latvia, 3 were
employed in Estonia and 3 were employed in Poland.

The Group recognizes the importance of its staff in operating a stable and efficient business, and in providing the highest
level of customer service and, accordingly, the Group strives to recruit, train, reward and retain only the best personnel.
The Group usually introduces a remuneration system comprised of a standard gross salary, paid monthly, as well as
bonuses, based on the discretionary decision of the Management.

There are no trade unions or workers councils registered in the Group Companies. There are no collective bargaining
agreements concluded in the Group companies.

As of 315 December 2015, the Group's employees, except for Mr Jonas Garbaravifius, Mr Giedrius Balfilinas, Mr Vidas
Cebatarilinas, Mr Saulius Garbaravitius, Mr Nerijus Veikia, Mr Paulius Vazniokas, Mr Edvardas VaZgéla, Mr Edvardas
Norkelidinas and Ms Loreta Sertvytyté do not have any direct or indirect shareholdings in the Company, do not hold any
stock options or other rights to the Shares and do not participate in any other way in the capital of the Company. There
are no arrangements relating to such participation.
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Senior Management

In the opinion of the Company’s management, except for members of the Company’s corporate bodies, the following
persons are the most important for the Group (herein after the “Senior Management™);

Name Position/Function
Pautius Vazniokas Economic Director
Aisté Vaitaityté Deputy CEQ
Edvardas Vaigéla Electricity Trading Development Director
Nerijus Yeikia Legal Department Director
Saulius Garbaravicius Chief Corporate Communication Officer

The business address of the members of the Senior Management is the Company’s principal place of business at
A. Tumeéno 4, Vilnius, Lithuania.

Paulius Vazniokas has been the Economic Director of the Company since 2007. He currently holds several positions in
the Group Companies. Since 2007, Mr Vazniokas has also sat on the management board of UAB Scaent Baltic. He also
holds various positions in companies from UAB Scaent Baltic’s group. Before joining the Group, Mr Vazniokas gained
experience as: Head of Commercial Real Estate Department in Kaunas branch of Ober Haus UAB (2000-2002), Real Estate
Project Manager and Director at AB PanevéZio keliai group (2002-2004), as well as a CFO and Head of Administration at
UAB Realtus (2004-2007).

Mr Vazniokas holds Bachelor's degree in Business Administration from Vytautas Magnus University, which he obtained in
2000. in 2002 he obtained Master's degree in Finance and Banking from Vytautas Magnus University. Mr Vazniokas also
obtained Ph. D. degree in Economics from Vytautas Magnus University in 2011, Since 2007, he has lectured at Vytautas
Magnus University. Mr Vazniokas also studied law at Vilnius University (2002-2006).

Aisté Vaitaityté has been the Deputy CEQ of the Company since 1 June 2005. She has been associated with the Group
since 2003 and, before becoming the Deputy CEQ, Ms Vaitaityte held position of Head of information Analysis and
Transmission Division.

Ms Vaitaityté holds Master's degree in Law and Management from Mykeclas Romeris University, which she obtained in
2003. In 2000 Ms Vaitaityté obtained Bachelor's degree in Social sciences from Lithuanian University of Educational
Sciences.

Edvardas VaZgéla has been the Electricity Trading Development Director of the Company since 2012. Before joining the
Group, Mr VaZgéla had, for over 20 years, been associated with Lietuvos energija AB, working as: Leading Engineer
(1991-1993), Energy Marketing Services Manager (1993-1996), Energy Trading Centre Director (1996-2001), Hectricity
Market Department Director (2001-2009) and Wholesale Electricity Trading Department Director (2010-2011). Moreover,
in years 1977-1991 Mr VaZgéla worked for Lithuanian National Energy System, first as an Engineer inspector and later as
an Electrical Inspection Chief.

Mr Vazgéla graduated from the Kaunas Polytechnic Institute in 1977 with specialization in electricity engineering. His
education atso includes various courses in the fields of electricity and energy.

Nerijus Veiksa has been the Legal Department Director of the Company since 2007. He also is a lawyer at UAB FM| Orion
Securities. His past professional experience inciudes posts of: Director at National Association of Business Administrators
{2002-2003), Assistant General Director at Kauno termofikaciné elek{riné (2003-2006), lawyer at UAB Creditum (2007),
General Director at UAB Scaent Baltic Energy (2007-2009), Member of the supervisory board at OMX Baltic Benchmark
Fund (since 2010} and Member of the management board at UAB SC Baltic Media (2009-2012), Member of the
management board at UAB Scaent Baltic (2013-2015).

Mr Veiksa holds Master’s degree in International Commercial Law from the Law Faculty of Vytautas Magnus University,
which he obtained in 2002. In 1999, he also obtained Bachelor's degree in Business Administration from Vytautas Magnus
University.

Saulius Garbaravicius has been Chief Corporate Communication Officer since 2013. Since 2013 Mr Garbaravitius is a
partner at CEE Resourcestinvestments LLP. His past professional experience includes posts of: Member of the Board at
UAB “Scaent Baltic” (2007-2013), Chairmen of the Board at UAB “SC Baltic Media” (2008-2013), CEQ at UAB “Franchise
Media” (2008-2011), CEO at UAB “Intelligent Media” (2009-2010).

Mr Garbaravi€ius holds Bachelor’s degree in Philosophy from Vytautas Magnus University,
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Vi. Statement on Corporate Governance

6.1, Statement on compliance with the BEST PRACTICE FOR WSE LISTED COMPANIES

The Company hereby informs about the Company's partial non-compliance with the Best Practice for GPW Listed
Companies 2016, The Best Practice for GPW Listed Companies 2016 can be found on the website dedicated to the
corporate governance at the Warsaw Stock Exchange: www.corp-gov.gpw.pl and on the corporate website:
www, interrao, it in the section "For Investors”.

The Company acknowledges the importance of the good corporate governance and intends to apply Best Practice for
GPW Listed Companies 2016 as wide as is practicable. However, due to, inter alia, differences between Polish and
Lithuanian Corporate Law the Company will not comply with the following rules:

I.R.2. according to which, if the Company pursues sponsorship, charity or other similar activities, then the Company
should publish the information about the relevant poticy, While the Company continuously supports sport, culture
and education as well as social initiatives as a part of its business mission, it does not consider it practicable to
adopt the relevant policy on its activity within these spheres.

.Z,1.3. and IL.Z,1. according to which the Company must publish a chart showing the division of duties and
responsibilities among members of the management board. Under Lithuanian Corporate Law, the management
board functions and responsibilities are not required to be divided among management board members.

I.Z.1.6. according to which information on the dates of corporate events leading to the acquisition of limitation of rights
of a shareholder, information on the dates of publication of financial reports and other events relevant to investors
must be provided in the Company’s website. The Company considers providing such information to investors.

1.Z.1.11. according to which the Company should publish on its website information about the content of the Company’s
internal rute of changing the company authorised to audit financial statements or information about the absence
of such rule. According to Lithuanian law, the audit firm is selected by the annual general meeting of the Company's
shareholders (the "Annual General Meeting”) to perform the audit of annual financial statements. The Supervisory
Board, the Management Board and the shareholders having at least 1/20 of votes may at any time prior fo or during
the Annual General Meeting suggest in writing or by means of electronic communication the audit firm, therefore
such rule is not required and the Company has not adopted any rules regarding the issue.

1.Z.1.14. according to which the Company should publish on its website materials provided to the general meeting (also
11.Z.10 according to which the Supervisory Board prepares and presents to the General Meeting a report and
assessment of the Company’s standing, including an evaluation of the internal control, risk management and
comptiance systems and the internal audit functions). The Company only partially complies with this principle, as
according to Lithuanian {aw, the Supervisory Board is not required to draw up such an assessment or report.

i.Z2.1.15. according to which information about the company’s diversity policy applicable to the governing bodies and
key managers should be publish on its website, Even though there is no such policy in the Company established, the
Company puts its best efforts to comply with general principals. Also a diverse among others in terms of gender is
ensured as currently, there are two women in governing bodies of the Company, Ms Karina Tsurkan, is the
chairwoman of the Management Board, Ms Natalia Ananieva is a member Supervisory Board, Mrs Aisté Vaitaityté is
deputy general director of the Company.

li.Z.3 and Il.7.4 and 1.Z.8 according to which at least two members of the Supervisory Board and the chair of the audit
committee should meet the criteria of being independent from the Company. As of the date of this report a member
of the Supervisory Board and a member of the Audit Committee Mr Nerijus Dagilis meets criteria of being
independent.

M.z.1, N.2.2, W.Z.3, B1.Z.4, lI.Z.5 according to which the management board of the company should be responsible
for implementation and maintenance of efficient internal control, risk management, compliance systems and
internal audit functions and establish rules applicable to implementation of these functions. Under Lithuanian
Corporate Law, the management board is not responsible for these functions and no separate units have to be
established in the company for this purpose. The Audit Committee is established in the Company which supervises
and considers accounting, internal control and risk management, as well as auditing activities of the Company,
performs an independent and unbiased supervision of the audit.

IV.R.2. {also 1.Z.1.16) according to which the Company should enable its shareholders to participate in a General Meeting
using electronic communication means through real-life broadcast of General Meetings and real-time bilateral
communication where shareholders may take the floor during a General Meeting from a location other than the
General Meeting and enable its shareholders to exercise the voting right during a General Meeting either in person
or through a plenipotentiary. The Company does not enable participation in the General Meeting by using electronic
communication means through real-life broadcast and real-time bilateral communication. However, the Company
does not exciude that such means will be adopted in the future. Also the Company does not comply with 1,7.1.20
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according to which the Company should make audio or video recording of a general meetings public as no such
recordings are required under Lithuanian Corporate Law.

V.Z.5. according to which the Supervisory Board should approve a significant transaction/agreement with a sharehotder
who holds at least 5% of the total vote in the company or with related party at the request of the Company's
Management Board. In accordance with Lithuanian Corporate Law, the Supervisory Board is not entitled to approve
any decisions of the Management Board and approve transactions.

Vi Section according to which the Company should have a remuneration policy and comply with the rules of defining
and implementing the policy as described therein. The Company has not adopted such policy, since the Company's
Group is developing and the number of employees and members of management do not justify implementation of
a complex set of rutes.

6.2.Description of the procedures of the General Meeting and its main powers and the rights of the
shareholders and procedures of their execution

6.2,1., Procedures of the General Meeting

The General Meeting s the supreme corporate body of the Company. Procedures and powers of the General Meeting of
Shareholders are regulated in the Articles of Association and specified in the Lithuanian Company Law.

The Company must hold at least one Annual General Meeting within four months of the end of the financial vear. The
Annual General Meeting, among other things, is entitled to resolve important corporate matters, such as any
amendments to the Articles of Association, any increase and reduction of the share capital of the Company, election
and removal of members of the Supervisory Board, selection and removal of the audit firm, approval of the annual
financial statements and interim financial statements, adoption of a decision on the distribution of profit, dissolution,
merger or transformation of the Company, and certain other matters.

The right of initiative to convene the General Meeting is vested in the Supervisory Board, the Management Board and
any shareholders holding at least 1/10 of all votes.

The agenda of the General Meeting shall be prepared by the Management Board or CEC (if the General Meeting is
convened by him/her). The General Meeting shall have no right to adopt decisions on issues not announced in the
agenda, except when ail shareholders with voting rights participate in the Generat Meeting and no one of them has
voted in writing.

The agenda of the General Meeting may be supplemented based on suggestions of the Supervisory Board, the
Management Board and any shareholder hotding at least 1/20 of all votes, as long as the suggestion is received not later
than 14 calendar days prior to the General Meeting. Such suggestion shall be submitted in writing or by means of
electronic communication, together with draft decisions, or when no decisions must be adopted, explanations on each
of the suggested agenda items shall be submitted.

Shareholders have the right to ask questions regarding items on the agenda of the General Meeting in advance. Under
Lithuanian law, the Company is obliged to answer these questions before the General Meeting, provided that the
questions were received by the Company not later than 3 business days prior to the General Meeting, If several questions
of identical content are submitted, the Company may respond with a single answer.

if the General Meeting is not held due to absence of a quorum (shareholders that have more than half of all votes and
participate at the General Meeting constitute a quorum), a repeat General Meeting shall be convened not earlier than
in 14 calendar days, and not later than 21 calendar days following the failed General Meeting. The shareholders shall
be informed of the convening of the repeat General Meeting in the same manner as the failed General Meeting, but not
later than 14 calendar days prior to the repeat General Meeting.

6.2.2. Voting at the General Meeting

Cach ordinary share of the Company confers one vote at the General Meeting. Participation and voting in the General
Meeting or the repeat General Meeting shall be reserved only for those who are shareholders on the record date, i.e.
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those who are shareholders at the end of the fifth business day prior to the General Meeting or prior to the repeat
General Meeting.

Those authorised by the shareholders and holding a power of attorney issued by means of electronic communication to
an individual or a company to participate and vote on his/her behalf at the General Meeting may attend and vote at the
General Meeting. Persons with whom an agreement on assignment of voting rights has been concluded may attend and
vote at the General Meeting if a shareholder informs the CEO of the Company of any transfer of voting rights by providing
copies of the respective agreement and (or) authorization. Under the Articles of Association such document must be
provided to the Company within 7 calendar days of the signing of the respective decument.

Anyone attending the General Meeting and entitled to vote must present a documenst which is a proof of his/her identity.
Anyone who is not a shareholder must additionally present a document proving his/her right to vote at the General
Meeting.

In addition, shareholders may vote in advance of the General Meeting by filling in written general voting ballots,
Shareholders that have voted in advance shall be deemed as participating in the General Meeting and their votes will
be counted when establishing the quorum and voting results. if the shareholder so requests, the Company, no later than
10 days before the General Meeting, must dispatch a general baliot paper by registered mail or present this against
signature, free of charge. The general batlot paper must also be available on the Company’s website (www.interrac.lt)
no later than 21 days before the General Meeting.

The General Meeting shall be deemed to have taken place and will be able to adopt decisions if the shareholders holding
more than hatf of all votes of the Company participate in the General Meeting. If the required quorum is not present,
the General Meeting shall be deemed to have failed to take place and a repeat General Meeting shall be convened. A
repeat General Meeting shall be held based on the agenda of the failed General Meeting and shall not be subject to
quorum requirements. General voting ballots of a failed General Meeting will be valid in a repeat General Meeting.

All shareholders participating in the General Meeting have the right to vote and ask questions during the General
Meeting. The right to participate and to speak at the General Meeting shall also be held by the members of the
Supervisory Board, Management Board, CEO, the General Meeting inspector and the auditor that prepared the conclusion
and the report.

The Company must record the voting results for each decision adopted at the General Meeting. The shareholders at the
General Meeting shall elect the General Meeting inspector who determines the total number of votes carried by the
shares issued by the Company on the day of the General Meeting, the number of valid and invalid general ballot papers
filled-in and submitted in advance, the number of valid and invalid proxies submitted, the number of submitted
agreements on the disposal of voting rights, the number of voting shares represented at the General Meeting (in person,
through proxies, through persons under agreements on the disposal of voting rights, under the general ballot papers
filled-in in advance, under other documents entitling to vote), whether the General Meeting has a quorum, and the
results of voting at the General Meeting.

Not later than within 7 days following the General Meeting, the Company must post the voting resutts of the General
Meeting on its website. Shareholders or their representatives that have participated in the General Meeting may become
familiar with the meeting minutes, and within 3 calendar days after becoming famitiar (but not later than within 10
calendar days of the General Meeting), may submit their comments and opinions in writing.

6.2.3. Electing members of the Supervisory Board

The members of the Supervisory Board are elected by the General Meeting. Under the Lithuantan law candidates for a
supervisory board may be proposed by the Management Board and a shareholder(s) holding shares representing at least
5% of votes. When electing Supervisory Beard members, each shareholder has a number of votes eqgual to the number
of votes carried by the shares of the Company he/she owns, multiptied by the number of members of the Supervisory
Board being elected. A shareholder can distribute votes at his/her own discretion, granting them to one or several
candidates. The candidate who receives the highest number of votes prevails. The chairman of the Supervisory Board is
elected by the members of the Supervisory Board. If the number of candidates who received an equal number of votes
exceeds the number of vacancies on the Supervisory Board, a repeat vote shall be held in which each shareholder may
vote only for one of the candidates who received the equal number of votes.
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The General Meeting may remove the entire Supervisory Board or its individual members before the expiry of their term
of office. Such decision requires a simple majority of votes. If an individual member is removed, resigns or discontinues
the performance of his/her duties for other reasons, and the shareholders whose shares carry at least 1/10 of all votes
object to the election of individual members of the Supervisory Board, then the entire Supervisory Board shall lose its
powers and shall be subject to election. Where individual members of the Supervisory Board are elected, they shall be
elected only until the expiry of the term of office of the current Supervisory Board.

Under the shareholders’ agreement entered by the principal shareholder of the Company (the Shareholders’
Agreement), at all times during the validity of the Shareholders’ Agreement, the principal shareholders will vote their
shares in order to elect five candidates nominated by the principal shareholders. In addition, the principal shareholders
will vote their shares to appoint two independent members proposed by the principal shareholder, since under
Lithuanian law, candidates for a Supervisory Board may be proposed by the Management Board and any shareholder(s)
holding shares representing at least 5% of votes.

6.2.4. Approval of annual accounts

Annual financial statements and an annual report are prepared by the CEQ, assessed by the Management Board and
commented on by the Supervisory Board. The Annual General Meeting receives annual financial statements and the
annual report, together with comments and proposals of the Supervisory Board, and adopts a decision to approve the
audited annual financial statements, The same procedure, mutatis mutandis, applies to the approval of interim accounts
of the Company if the General Meeting makes a decision to distribute dividends to the shareholders of the Company for
a period shorter than the financial year.

The annual financial statements, auditor’s report, annual report and other information required under Lithuanian {aw
must be made available to shareholders for review from the date of the notice on convening the Annual General Meeting.

6.2.5. Distribution of profit

Pursuant to the Law on Companies of the Republic of Lithuania, the Company may distribute its profit or assets to
shareholders only (i) by paying dividend; (ii) in case of liquidation of the Company; or (iif} in case of reduction of the
share capital of the Company.

Decision to distribute profits of the Company, as well as to establish, use, decrease and/or cancel the reserves, is
adopted in the General Meeting by the qualified ¥ majority of votes of shareholders participating in the General
Meeting.

The General Meeting may adopt a decision to dectare annual and interim dividends by the gualified % majority of votes
of shareholders participating at the General Meeting. The Company is allowed to pay dividends (i) only to the extent
that the Company’s equity exceeds the aggregate nominal value of all of the Company's shares plus the amount of any
reserves (mandatory reserve, the revaluation reserve and the reserve for acquisition of own shares) that the Company
is required to, or is allowed to, maintain pursuant to the Articles of Association or the provisions of applicable laws; (ii)
only if the Company has no outstanding non-performed obligations with due terms before the adoption of the decision
to pay out dividends, and (iii) only if the Company during the respective financial year or interim financial period has
made profit.

Further, payment of interim dividends may be initiated by the proposal of shareholders, holding at least 1/3 of all votes
of the Company. In addition to the above mentioned conditions, interim dividends are allowed to be paid only if (i)
financial statements for the respective period shorter than the financial year are approved by the General Meeting; (ii)
profit was generated during the respective period that is shorter than the financial year; (iii} the amount of the paid-
out interim dividends do not exceed the following: a) profit generated during the respective period that is shorter than
the financial year, plus undistributed profit (accumulated during all earlier years) present at the end of the previous
financial year, minus part of the profit generated during the respective period that is shorter than the financial year
that must be allocated to reserves under the Articles of Association or the Law on Companies (i.e. if the mandatory
reserve is below 1/10 of the registered share capital, deductions must be made to it of not less than 1/20 of the net
profit of the respective financial year); (iv) the Company has no outstanding obligations which became due before
adoption of the decision to pay out interim dividends and after the interim dividends are paid, the Company will remain
able to meet its obligations for the current financial year.
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Dividends are paid to persons who, at the end of the rights record date (i.e. the tenth business day following the day
the decision to distribute dividends was adopted by the General Meeting), were shareholders of the Company or were
otherwise entitled to receive dividends. Each shareholder is entitled to dividends pro rata to the number of shares held
by such shareholder. The Company must pay dividends within one month of the date of resolution adopted by the
General Meeting.

6.2.6, Issuance of shares

The Company may issue new shares pursuant to a resolution of the General Meeting adopted by qualified 3% majority of
votes of shareholders participating at the General Meeting; no special quorum is reqguired. A qualified % majority of
votes of shareholders participating at the General Meeting is also required to issue convertible bonds. The decision of
the General Meeting to issue new shares shall be deemed void in case of failure to submit the amended Articles of
Association to the Register of Legal Entities of the Republic of Lithuania within six months of the day on which the
General Meeting adopted the decision. If this deadline is not met, the contributions for the subscribed shares must
immediately be returned, without any deductions at the written request of the subscriber.

The Company’s share capital may be increased from the Company’s own funds by issuing new shares. In such case the
sharehiolders are entitled to receive new additional shares for no consideration in proportion to the nominal value of
the shares owned by them on the rights record day (i.e. the tenth business day following the day of the decision of the
General Meeting to increase the Company’s share capital).

A qualified 3 majority of votes of shareholders participating at the General Meeting is also required to establish the
class, number, nominal value, minimal issue price of shares in the Company, as well as to convert the Company’s shares
of one class into ancther class and related procedures.

6.2.7. Amendment of the Articles of Association

The General Meeting can resolve to amend the Articles of Association by a qualified % majority of votes of shareholders
participating at the General Meeting. The amended Articles of Association shall come into force on the day of the
registration of the Articles of Association with the Register of Legal Entities of the Republic of Lithuania. Once the
amendments to the Articles of Association are entered in the companies register, the Company publishes a relevant
current report.

6.2.8. The rights of the shareholders and procedures of their execution

in addition to the rights described above, the shareholders of the Company also enjoy ather rights established by the
Lithuanian Company Law or other legal acts of the Republic of Lithuania.

6.2.9. Right to transfer the shares

According to Lithuanian law, the Company is prohibited from introducing any additional restrictions of the shareholders
right to dispose of fully paid shares to another person. There are no restrictions on transfer of the shares, other than
those described in applicable laws or agreed between the shareholders of the Company.

6.2.10. Pre-emptive right

Each shareholder holding the shares at the end of the rights record date (i.e. the tenth business day following the day
of the decision of the General Meeting to increase the Company’s share capital) has a pre-emptive right with respect to
all new share issuances or convertible bonds, in proportion to the number of shares held by such shareholder.

Pre-emptive rights may be withdrawn by a decision of the General Meeting taken by a qualified % majority of votes of
shareholders participating at the General Meeting. The right of pre-empticn to acquire new shares being issued by the
Company or the convertible bonds may only be withdrawn for all shareholders of the Company. A written proposat to
withdraw the pre-emptive right must be given by the Management Board, indicating reasons and causes for such
withdrawal, as well as persons who would be offered to acquire the newly issued securities. The General Meeting, taking
a decision on withdrawal of the pre-emptive right, must justify the necessity to withdraw such right and specify the
person or persons who are given the right to subscribe to newly issued securities or convertible bonds, save for cases
when the pre-emptive right is withdrawn because of the intention to make a pubtic offering of securities of the Company
under the procedure set by the Lithuanian Law on Securities.
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6.2.11. Right to receive Information

At the written request of any shareholder, the Company shall, no {ater than within 7 days from the day of receipt of
such request, submit to the shareholder to become familiar with and (or} present copies of the following documents:
the Articles of Association of the Company, annual and interim financial statements, annual and interim reports of the
Company, audit statements and reports, minutes of the General Meeting and other documents containing decisions of
the General Meeting, lists of the shareholders, other documents of the Company which must be public by law of the
Republic of Lithuania as long as they do not contain any commercial {industrial) secret or confidential information of
the Company. Upon submission to the Company of a written undertaking in the form established by the Company not to
disclose the commercial (industrial) secret and confidential information, a shareholder or group of shareholders holding
or possessing more than half of all the shares shall have the right to become familiar with all documents of the Company.
The Company has the right to refuse to provide to the shareholder present copies of the documents if it is unable to
determine the identity of the shareholder, Refusal to provide to the shareholder with present documents shall be
executed by the Company in writing at the shareholder’s request. Disputes regarding the right of the shareholder to
information shall be settled in court.

The Company’s documents and other information or copies thereof shall be presented to the shareholders at the
registered office of the Company. The Company’s documents, their copies and other information shall be presented to
the shareholders, free of charge.

6.2.12. Inquiry right

One or more shareholders, individually or jointly representing at least 1/10 of the share capital of the Company, may
assert their inquiry right. This means that they may appeal to the court in writing to appoint one or more experts to
conduct an inquiry of the activity and affairs of the Company, i.e. whether the Company or the Company’s corporate
bodies or their members acted in the proper manner.

In the event of improper performance of the activity, the following sanctions may be imposed by the court after
evaluating the findings reported by the appointed experts: (i) revocation of the resolutions taken by the corporate
bodies; (ii) temporary suspension of the powers of the members of the corporate bodies or exclusion of a person from
the corporate bedy; (iii) appointment of provisional members of corporate bodies; (iv) authorisation of non-
implementation of certain provisions of incorporation documents; (v) obligation to make amendments to certain
provisions of incorporation documents; (vi) transferral to another person of the member’s right of the corporate body
to vote; (vii) obligation of the Company to take or not {ake certain actions; and {viii) liquidation of the Company and
appointment of a liguidator.

6.3.Personal composition and procedures of the Company’s Management and Supervisory Boards
and its committees

Rules of conduct of the Supervisory Board, its committees and the Management Board are regulated in the Articles of
Association of the Company and the Regulations of work of the Supervisory Board, its committees and the Supervisory
Board, respectively.

6.3.1. Management Board

The Company’s Management Board consists of five board members, including the chairman of the Management Board.
Under Lithuanian law, the Management Board may act if at least 2/3 of the number of members established in the
Articles of Association are appointed and participate in the Management Board activities. Under the Articles of
Association, the members are appointed for a term of four years. Each member may be reappointed. The Supervisory
Board elects the Board members by a majority of votes of the members who attended the Supervisory Board’s meeting
and those who voted in advance. The chairman of the Management Board is elected by the Management Board. The
Supervisory Board may recall the entire Management Board or its individual members before the expiry of the term of
their office if at least 2/3 of the Supervisory Board members present at the meeting vote for such a decision. The
Management Board is responsible for the strategic direction of the Company under the supervision of the Supervisory
Board. Under the Articles of Association, all resolutions of the Management Board must, depending on the type of
decision, be adopted either by a simple majority of the votes cast, or unanimously.

The following decisions must be adopted unanimously (defined as all members of the Management Board vote for the
adoption of the decision}: (i) to approve and amend the by-laws of the Management Board; (ii) election and removal of

. T 74
INTERRAO £ LIETUVA




AB INTER RAO LIETUVA, Company code 126119913, A . Tuméno str. 4, Vilnius, Lithuania
CONSOLIDATED ANNUAL REPORT

FOR THE 12 MONTH PERIOD ENDED 31% December 2015

{all amounts are in EUR thousand unless otherwise stated)

the CEQ, establishment of his/her salary and other employment conditions, to provide him/her incentives and impose
penalties; approval of the by-laws of the CEOQ; (iii) approval of the business strategy of the Company; (iv} approval of
the management structure and positions of the Company; (v) becoming an incorporator or member of other legal entities
and acquisition of shares or part of capital in other legat entities; (vi) establishing branches and representative offices
of the Company, approval of their regulations and nomination of their managers; (vii) investing, transferring of or leasing
the tangible long-term assets, the book value of which exceeds 1/20 of the authorised share capital of the Company
(calculated individually for each type of transaction); (viii) pledging or mortgaging the tangible long-term assets, the
book value of which exceeds 1/20 of the authorised share capital of the Company {calculated for the total amount of
transactions); (ix) granting surety or guarantee for the discharge of abligations of third persons, the amount of which
exceeds 1/20 of the authorised share capital of the Company; (x} acquiring tangible long-term assets, the price of which
exceeds 1/20 of the authorised share capital of the Company; (xi) approval, amendment or termination of the
transactions between the Company and persons related to shareholders (except for transactions regarding the sale or
purchase of electricity and/or transactions that are included in the annual investment program or budget approved by
the Management Board); {xii) approval or amendment of the annual budget of the Company; (xiii) adopting decisions on
issuance of debentures; (xiv} approval of transactions which are outside the scope of an annual investment program
approved by the Management Board and investments exceeding EUR 1.5 million; (xv) any decisions related to the
exercising of the shareholder’s rights or obligations in any controlled legat entity of the Company, including (without
limitation} voting in the general meetings of shareholders, nomination of the candidates to the governing bodies etc.;
{xvi) making transactions or actions for sale or other transfer of the shares, capital or any other form of the membership
interest (including any rights carried thereby) held by the Company in any legal entity; {xvii) decision of any other issue
attributed to the competence of the Management Board by the laws, by the decisions of the General Meeting and by
the Articles of Association; (xviii} approval of the annual investment program of the Company; and {xix) approval of
transactions whereby loans, credits or similar financial arrangements to be obtained by the Company or whereby loans,
credits or simitar financial arrangements to be extended by the Company.

The term of office of the Management Board shall commence after the closing of the Meeting of the Supervisory Board
at which it was elected. The Management Board shall perform its functions for a term of four years or until election and
commencement of functioning of a new Management Board, but no tonger than until the annual General Meeting to be
held in the year at the end of the term of office of the Management Board. As at the date of the Report, the Management
Board is composed of five members.

6.3.2. Supervisory Board

The Supervisory Board consists of five members, including the chairman. Under Lithuanian taw, the Supervisory Board
may act if at least half of the number of members established in the Articles of Association are appeinted and participate
in Supervisory Board activities. The members of the Supervisory Board are etected by the General Meeting. The General
Meeting may also remove the entire Supervisory Board or its individual members before the expiry of their term of
office.

The Supervisory Board is responsible for supervising the activities of the Management Board and the CEQ, The Supervisory
Board may adopt decisions, and its meetings are considered to have been validly held only if more than half of its
members are present, or represented during such a meeting. The members of the Supervisory Board who have voted in
advance shall also be considered to have attended the meeting. Each member of the Supervisory Board is entitled to
one vote.

Under the Articles of Association, the members of the Supervisory Board are elected for a term of four years by the
General Meeting. The Supervisory Board commences its activities after the closing of the General Meeting which elected
the Supervisory Board and shall perform its functions for a period of four years or until a new Supervisory Board is
elected, but not for longer than the date of the annual General Meeting to be held during the final year of the term of
office of the Supervisory Board.

The Supervisory Board shall have all powers and rights provided for by the laws and these Articles of Association,
including: (i) to approval and amendment of by-laws of Supervisory Board; (ii} election of members of the Management
Board and removal from the office; (iii} supervision of activities of the Management Board and CEQ; (iv) submission of
comments and proposals to the General Meeting on the Company’s operating strategy, annual financial statements,
draft of profit (loss) appropriation and the annual report of the Company, as well as the activities of the Management
Board and CEO; (v) submission of comments and proposals to the General Meeting on draft decision of atlocation of
dividends for any period shorter than the financial year, and for that purpose composed interim financial statements
and annual report; {vi) submission of proposals to the Management Board and CEQ to revoke any decisions which are in
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conflict with the laws, other legal acts, the Articles of Association or decisions of the General Meeting; (vii) request the
Management Board and the CEO to submit documents related to the activity of Company; (viii) right to make proposals
for the reorganization terms; (ix) right to initiate the conveyance of the General Meeting; (x) right to supplement the
agenda of the General Meeting; and (xi) a member of Supervisory Board has the right attend and speak at the General
Meeting.

A decision to remove a member of the Management Board from office may be taken if at least 2/3 of the Supervisory
Board members present at the meeting, including any who have voted in advance, vote for it.

As at the date of this report, the Supervisory Board is composed of five members. The Company expects that additional
two members of the Supervisory Board will be elected during the Annual General Meeting. It is expected that such
additional members of the Supervisory Board shall meet criteria of being independent.

6.3.3, Committees

in order to properly implement its supervisory function, the Supervisory Board has the right to form its committees. The
audit committee is formed from among the members of the Supervisory Board. The audit committee shall consist of
three members, of the Supervisory Board as of 12t December 2013 Mr Nerijus Dagilis, Mr Mikhail Konstantinov and Mr
Aleksandr Pakhomov were elected as members of audit committee of the Company. Mr. Aleksandr Pakhomov is the
Chairman of the audit committee.

The audit committee’s term of office shall be the same as the Supervisory Board. Any decisions made by the audit
committee shall be only of an advisory nature to the Supervisory Board. The main tasks of the audit committee shall
inctude, among others, the monitoring of the Company’s financial information integrity, the external auditor’s
independence and objectivity, as well as the effectiveness of the external audit process, the review of internal control
and risk management systems.

6.3.4, Description of the basic features of the Company’s internal control and
risk management systems related to the process of preparing financial
statements

The Company’s system of internal control and risk management in the process of drawing up financial statements is
implemented through:

- the audit of the annuat financial statements of the Company and the Group companies;

- verification whether a single accounting policy is applied by the Company's Group companies as regards the
recognition, measurement and disclosures in accerdance with the International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS);

- following accounting standards and monitoring compliance with them,

The Company maintains its financial statements in accordance with the {FRS as adopted by the International Accounting
Standards Board (“IASB™), and interpretations issued by the International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee
(“IFRIC”)}, and as applicable in the respective years.

The Company has certain procedures to authorise the financial statements under which the periodical annual reports
are submitted to the Management Board for an approval and after the approval disclosed in public. Subsequently, the
financial statements are forwarded to the Supervisory Board for their opinion. The Annual General Meeting receives
annual financial statements and the annual report, together with comments and proposals of the Supervisory Board,
and adopts a decision to approve the audited annual financial statements. Before the publication, the financial
statements are treated as confidential information of the Company and provided solely to persons involved in the
preparation, verification and approval process which are bind under the confidentiality undertakings.

6.3.5. Publicly announced information

During the period from the start of 2015 to 31 December 2015 Company publicly announced and broadcasted through
_ Warsaw Stock Exchange information system and on own webpage the following information:
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Category of
Title announcement Language Date

Publication date of the results for the 4th quarter of

2014 and the Annual Information for 2014 of AB INTER

RAQ Lietuva Investor news EN, LT 25-Jan-2015

Announcement of the results for the 4th quarter of 2014

and the Annual Information for 2014 of AB INTER RAO

Lietuva Annual information EN, LT 27-Jan-2015
Notification on

Announcement of the transactions concluded by transactions concluded by

managers in AB INTER RAQ Lietuva securities managers EN, LT 20-Mar-2015

Statement on corporate governance Investor news EN, LT 23-Mar-2015
Notification on

Anncuncement of the transactions concluded by transactions concluded by

managers in AB INTER RAO Lietuva securities managers EN, LT 26-Mar-2015

AB INTER RAO Lietuva decisions of the Management Notification on material

Board event EN, LT 27-Mar-2015

AB INTER RAQO Lietuva announces about repayment of Notification on material

loans’ amounts to its major shareholders event EN, LT 1-Apr-2015
Notification on material

AB INTER RAO Lietuva decisions of the Supervisory Board  event EN, LT 7-Apr-2015

Notice on convocation of the Annual General Meeting of  Notification on material

Sharehotders event EN, LT 8-Apr-2015

The decisions adopted by the Annual General Meeting of  Notification on material

Shareholders of AB INTER RAO Lietuva event EN, LT 30-Apr-2015
Notification on material

Notice on the procedure for the payment of dividends event EN, LT 12-May-2015

Publication date of the results for the 1st quarter of

2015 Investor news EN, LT 13-May-2015

Announcement of the results for the 1st quarter of the

year 2015 of AB INTER RAQ Lietuva Interim information EN, LT 15-May-2015

AB INTER RAQ Lietuva announces about financing Notification on material

recefved from its major shareholders event EN, LT 28-May-2015
Notification on

Announcement of the transactions concluded by transactions concluded by

managers in AB INTER RAQ Lietuva securities managers EN, LT 15-Jur-2015

AB INTER RAQ Lietuva announces about registration of

the authorized capital expressed in euro and registration  Notification on material

of the amended Articles of Association event EN, LT 17-Jun-2015
Naotification on

Announcement of the transactions concluded by transactions concluded by

managers in AB INTER RAO Lietuva securities managers EN, LT 18-Jun-2015
Notification on

Announcement of the transactions concluded by transactions concluded by

managers in AB INTER RAQ Lietuva securities managers EN, LT 19-Jun-2015
Notification on

Announcement of the transactions concluded by transactions concluded by

managers in AB INTER RAQ Lietuva securities managers EN, LT 26-Jun-2015
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Announcement of the transactions concluded by

Notification on
transactions concluded by

managers in AB INTER RAQ Lietuva securities managers EN, LT 30-Jun-2015

Publication date of the results for the for the 6 month

period ended 30 June 2015 Investor news EN, LT 25-Aug-2015

Announcement of the results for the 6 month period

ended 30 June 2015 of AB INTER RAQ Lietuva Interim information EN, LT 28-Aug-2015
Notification on

Announcement of the transactions concluded by transactions concluded by

managers in AB INTER RAD Lietuva securities mahagers EN, LT 09-Sep-2015
Notification on

Announcement of the transactions concluded by transactions concluded by

managers in AB INTER RAD Lietuva securities managers EN, LT 11-5ep-2015
Notification on

Announcement of the transactions concluded by transactions concluded by

managers in AB INTER RAO Lietuva securities managers EN, LT 16-Sep-2015
Notification on

Announcement of the transactions concluded by transactions concluded by

managers in AB INTER RAQ Lietuva securities managers EN, LT 22-Sep-2015

Publication date of the results for the 3rd quarter of

2015 Investor news EN, LT 10-Nov-2015

Anncuncement of the results for the 3rd quarter of the

year 2014 of AB INTER RAQ Lietuva Interim information EN, LT 13-Nov-2015
Notification on

Announcement of the transactions concluded by transactions concluded by

managers in AB INTER RAC Lietuva securities managers EN, LT 20-Nov-2015

AB INTER RAOQ Lietuva announces about paitial

repayment of loans’ amounts to its major shareholders Notification on transactions

before the repayment date concluded by managers EN, LT 20-Nov-2015

Anncuncement of the transactions concluded by Notification on transactions

managers in AB INTER RAO Lietuva securities concluded by managers EN, LT 30-Nov-2015

Annocuncement of the transactions concluded by Notification on fransactions

managers in AB INTER RAO Lietuva securities concluded by managers EN, LT 04-Dec-2015

Announcement of the transactions conctuded by Notification on transactions

managers in AB INTER RAQ Lietuva securities concluded by managers EN, LT 09-Dec-2015

Announcement of the transactions concluded by Notification on transactions

managers in AB INTER RAQ Lietuva securities concluded by managers EN, LT 15-Dec-2015

Announcement of the transactions concluded by Notification on transactions

managers in AB INTER RAQ Lietuva securities conciuded by managers EN, LT 18-Dec-2015

Announcement of the transactions concluded by Notification on fransactions

managers in AB INTER RAO Lietuva securities concluded by managers EN, LT 23-Dec-2015

Announcement of the transactions concluded by Notification on transactions

managers in AB INTER RAO Lietuva securities concluded by managers EN, LT 30-Dec-2015

Contents of above mentioned announcements can be obtained on Company’s webpage http: //www.interrao.lt/eng/For-

{nvestors?/Reports/Current-Reports/2015,
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Vil. Confirmation of Responsible Persons

Following the Article No. 22 of the Law on Securities of the Republic of Lithuania and Rules on Preparation and
Submission of Periodic and Additional Information of the Lithuanian Securities Commission, |, Giedrius Balcilinas,
General Director of AB INTER RAQ Lietuva hereby confirm that, to the best of my knowledge, AB INTER RAQ Lietuva
Financial Statements as of and for the year ended 31 December 2015 as set out on above are prepared in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union and give a true and fair view of the
assets, liabilities, financial position and profit or loss and cash flows of the Company and the Group. The consolidated
Annual Report of the Company includes a fair review of the development and performance of the business and the
position of the Company and the Group in relation to the description of the main risks and contingencies faced thereby.

Giedrius BalCitinas |

General Director .:




